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Chairman’s Statement

INTRODUCTION

In this financial year, the operating revenue of the original
design manufacturing business, which earns a comparatively
lower profit margin, has grown in its contribution to the
Group’s overall sales income. Also, the business performance
of the Smartphone SBU (strategic business unit) has not
turned around yet. As a result, the Group’s overall profit
margin decreased and this led to a 33% decrease in the
Group’s total net profit.

ELECTRONIC DICTIONARY

The sales revenue of the SBU in this financial year has
recorded a slight drop in comparing with the previous fiscal
year. The decline in sales revenue has much to do with a
weak business performance in Mainland China market. With
the enhanced research and development capability, the
launch of more competitive products and the strength of our
market network, the Group expects that the SBU’s sales
revenue will grow in the coming year.

ErEFEM
Electronic Handheld
Products

50.3%
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SMARTPHONE

The SBU has not turned around yet. It is still at its investment
stage and therefore, has had a certain impact on the Group’s
overall profit. In the past years of endeavour, the Group has
however built up close partnership with our technology
partners and also a number of network operators. Also,
substantial experience and expertise in product development
has been acquired, and indeed the Group’s newly launched
product has won the award of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industry and warm reception from the distributors.

In the coming year, the Group will focus on exploring
European and United States markets, and with the Group’s
new products and the establishing networks, the business
performance of the SBU is expected to improve this year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Cont’'d)

ORIGINAL DESIGN MANUFACTURING

The SBU has its sales turnover increased in this financial
year, a result of a steady growth of Japanese electronic
product market and a strong partnership with the Group’s
strategic customers. Despite a drop in the net profit margin,
the net profit has recorded an increase as compared with
the previous financial year.

The SBU is developing new technology products in new
emerging business fields. The Group is optimistic that these
new developments will have positive impact on the SBU’s
future business growth.

Analysis of Turnover by Geographical Market

hE (FBRRM)

The People’s Republic of China
(other than Hong Kong)

5.5%

Sl
North America
4.0%

Hith
Others
3.0%

58
Hong Kong
12.7%

HitM s
(BFEA)

Other Asian markets
(including Japan)
74.8%

7 —EERHEAFRE Annual Report 2005



BE (EE) R 238 Group Sense (International) Limited = f f

TREHREE (H)

Chairman’s Statement (Cont'd)

e
SERHEERTIESMNTEEERHBRLE
- -MEBEBRKRELHERLERBINTS - M
FRETIRELAESEEER  HEEE
BNREZREREEEN - KEKRBID
EGE YERREERENMEFNERE
B NEHEBER -

RKERE

EFEeRER R _TTRF=ZA=Z+—H
IEFEZRPBRESRI.OBIW(ZEZTNF -
3.0/ - RIEBRHAKRENR_ZEZTHFNAR
ARZETFEZINR_ZEZERFNATNBZER
2t EzRRE -

0S &
AAERREZS  RASKRR EP  HED
FIRTTEGE - ZH M EREREA TR
NTRHSEIBEZFHTERRERMEZ
BEf-

EEEGD

FE

BE=

5% —TERFEATEA

—EERFEFHE Annual Report 2005

CONCLUSION

The Group anticipates a steady growth in Hong Kong and
other major Asian markets and will focus its future business
developments on overseas markets. The Group believes that
it is an important long term development strategy for the
Group to continue focusing on developing new competitive
and high value-added products. The Group will also explore
new business opportunities and leverage on its existing
resources to capture growth spots and sustain its business
growth.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors propose a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per
share in respect of the year ended 31st March, 2005 (2004:
HKS3.0 cents), payable on or about 5th September, 2005 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members on 18th August, 2005.

APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to thank all our
shareholders, customers, suppliers and bankers for their
continual support. | would also like to extend my appreciation
to all the staff for their dedicated work and their contribution
throughout the year.

By order of the Board
Tam Wai Ho, Samson
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14th July, 2005
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BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

In continuing the economic recovery since 2003, Hong Kong
economy has been growing quite well in the past year.
However, the elevated business running cost that comes
along with the recovery is also noteworthy. The Pearl River
Delta is the production base of Hong Kong. The escalating
trend of operation costs is conspicuous as can be seen in
the rental, raw materials and wages fronts. Moreover, the
shortages of skilled labour and electricity supply are frequent
occurrences to most factory operators. The Group is well
aware of and closely monitoring the situation so as to
formulate the appropriate response strategies.

Being a technology based enterprise, the Group’s future
development hinges on a strong and quality research and
development team which can bring in for the Group more
innovative and competitive products. As Hong Kong is
gradually changing to become a knowledge-based society,
the need for talents excel at knowledge-based economy and
research and development is increasing. It is believed that
the Government will work on reviewing its policies on
attracting and keeping talents and expertise in Hong Kong,
and to help bring in talents from overseas countries or the
mainland. This will improve Hong Kong’s business running
environment and enhance our competitiveness. This will also
promote the Group’s business growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover of the financial year is approximately HK$1,310
million, which is 3% lower than approximately HK$1,356
million of the previous year. During the year under review,
electronic handheld products business and original design
manufacturing business recorded turnovers of approximately
HK$659 million and approximately HK$651
respectively.

million

10
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Operating profit for the year is approximately HK$69 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$34 million or
33%. There are two charging items in deriving the profit
before taxation. Finance costs mainly represent the interest
expense of approximately HK$1 million (2004: approximately
HK$2 million) and the exceptional loss on disposal of a
subsidiary of approximately HK$5 million. Profit before
taxation is approximately HK$63 million. After taking into
account the income tax credit and minority interests, profit
for the year is approximately HK$62 million, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$100 million. In 2003-2004
financial year, there were exceptional gain items of
approximately HK$62 million in total on repurchase of
convertible redeemable preferred shares issued to minority
shareholders of a subsidiary and on reversal of premium on
the convertible redeemable preferred shares issued to
minority shareholders of a subsidiary. Excluding the
exceptional loss item of the year and the exceptional gain
item of the previous year, the profit for the year represents a
decrease of approximately HK$33 million as compared with
the previous financial year.

On the balance sheet side, inventories have increased by
approximately HK$29 million to become approximately
HK$189 million and trade receivables decreased by
approximately HK$101 million to approximately HK$86
million. The changes are due to the differential growth in
different SBU businesses in the fiscal year.

Bank balances and cash (including bank deposits) amount
to approximately HK$282 million. Net cash (i.e. after
deducting bank borrowings from balances of bank deposits)
is approximately HK$246 million that is 60% higher than
approximately HK$154 million of the previous year. The solid
cash position is the result of a very strong cash inflow during
the year. Net cash generated from operating activities is
approximately HK$160 million (2004: HK$110 million). This
is attributable to the profits generated in the continuing
businesses and a decrease in trade receivables.

11 —EZRFREFIRE Annual Report 2005
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Total bank borrowings amount to approximately HK$37
million. Among them, about 73% or approximately HK$27
million, are short term borrowings such as trade bills that
are to be due within a year. The remaining approximately
HK$10 million are long term financing that are to be due
beyond one year. Maturity and security profiles of bank
borrowings are contained in note 25 of the financial
statements. All bank borrowings are on floating rate basis.
The management continues to maintain a very close working
relationship with the Group’s bankers to secure their continual
support.

It is noted that the balance sheet of the Group is getting
healthier than previous year and is setting a strong and
solid foundation for future growth.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

On 31st March, 2005, the bank balances and cash (including
bank deposits) were approximately HK$282 million in total,
which was approximately HK$39 million or 16% higher than
that at 31st March, 2004. Total bank borrowings have
decreased from approximately HK$89 million to approximately
HK$37 million in the twelve months’ period.

Continuous positive operating cash inflow has resulted from
net cash generated from operating activities.

Most of the bank borrowings are short term in nature, around
HK$27 million or 73% of total, which would be due within
one year. The remaining bank borrowings of around HK$10
million are long term borrowings which are to be due in
more than one year.

As at 31st March, 2005, the gearing ratio, defined as total
bank borrowings divided by shareholders’ equities, has
decreased from 15% to 6% in the twelve months’ period. As
a result, the interest expenses for the twelve months’ period
have reduced from approximately HK$2 million to
approximately HK$1 million.

12
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Disposal of a Subsidiary

In September 2004, the Group sold its Singapore based
research and development subsidiary to a Singapore listed
company at a consideration of HK$10 million. The transaction
has incurred a loss of approximately HK$5 million, which
has been reflected in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31st March, 2005.

Properties and Charges on Assets
There is no addition or disposal of properties during the
year.

In securing general banking facilities, certain assets were
pledged to banks as collaterals, of which the carrying value
amounted to approximately HK$87 million as at the end of
31st March, 2005. This is approximately HK$13 million lower
than that of the previous twelve months’ period.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st March, 2005, the trade bills discounted to banks
with recourse amounted to approximately HK$95 million which
were approximately HK$73 million higher than those of twelve
months ago.

Foreign Currencies and Treasury Policy

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United
States dollars or China Reminbi.
Group’s raw material purchase is denominated in Japanese
Yen. The usual treasury policy of the Group is to manage

A small portion of the

significant currency exposure and minimize currency risk
whenever it may have material impact to the Group. The
Group does not engage in any interest rate or currencies
speculations.

13 —EZRFREFIRE Annual Report 2005
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ELECTRONIC DICTIONARY

Review

The sales revenue of the SBU in the financial year 2004-
2005 has recorded a slight drop in comparing with the
previous fiscal year. The decline in sales revenue has much
to do with a weak business performance in Mainland China
market. Faced with the highly competitive environment on
Mainland China, the Group has taken a close and cautious
watch at the market and adopted a conservative strategy in
our investment and promotion plans. At the same time, the
Group has strived to simplify our operations so as to enhance
the efficiency and better control the costs in distribution and
sales areas.

The sales in Hong Kong and major overseas markets have
been growing steadily in the past year. This is the result of
the Group’s strategy in focusing our resources and technology
investment in developing medium and high range products.

The Group’s new products which are equipped with wide-
ranged learning contents as well as entertainment functions
have received positive feedback from the markets. The
recently launched English-Chinese and Chinese-English bi-
directional full-sentence translation dictionary has contributed
in increasing our market share.

Outlook

Despite the competition in the electronic dictionary market
getting more intensified, the Group is of the belief that with
the Group’s well-established brand name and distribution
networks in Asian markets, the Group may still command a
good business prospect in the future.

The Group continues to focus on developing medium and
high end products with more innovative designs, better
functional features, rich learning contents and leading
translation technology. The interactive learning concept will
be one of the key elements in new product design. The
Group believes that these new products will support the
Group to achieve good sales performance in next fiscal year.
The Group anticipates a stable growth in Hong Kong and
Asian markets. Reasonable profit margin will also be
maintained. The Mainland China market is important for the
SBU in the long term and the Group will continue to invest
the appropriate resources in the market in line with the
Group’s strategy.

15 —EZRFREFIRE Annual Report 2005
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SMARTPHONE

Review

Last year, business performance of the SBU did not match
up to expectation. The mainland mobile phone manufacturers
and operators are still fixating on medium to low priced
products and are mostly at the beginning stage in developing
medium to high priced smartphone market and the related
services. This has an impact on the SBU’s mainland
marketing strategy. As for collaboration with foreign telecom
network services providers, it takes the SBU a longer time in
developing and testing new products and as a result, the
marketing of new products has been delayed.

In the previous year, the SBU has launched a new generation
of smartphone — the M series, which have adopted more
advanced CPU, communication technology and operational
system. Together with the staunch support from our
technology partners, the new products have greatly enhanced
in their data communication and multi-media functions as
compared with the previous G series. Among them, the M28
model has won the 2004 Hong Kong Awards for Industry:
Consumer Product Design Certificate of Merit, awarded by
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries. Through working
closely with telecom network services providers, the SBU
may match up with network providers’ services so that our
products may cater well for the customers’ needs.

Despite that last year’s performance has not been that
satisfactory, the SBU has acquired and accumulated
substantial experience and expertise in product development.
And together with the building up of strong partnership with
our technology partners and with the network operators, the
SBU has laid down a good foundation for the SBU’s future
development and success.

17 —EZRFREFIRE Annual Report 2005
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SMARTPHONE (Continued)

Outlook

Developing mobile phones with multiple functions and
applications will be the future trend of mobile phone market.
In developed countries like Europe or the United States,
smartphone market has been growing substantially. However,
the products’ diverse variation, their short life-cycles and the
downward price trend are the major challenges to the
industry. Faced with intense competition, manufacturers in
developed countries are speeding up in outsourcing their
work on product development and manufacturing. Also, most
network services providers are capable of providing their
customers with tailor-made mobile phones. As a result, the
mobile phone original design manufacturing business has
been growing rapidly, and this lays ground for the SBU’s
business growth.

The SBU will focus on developing its original design
manufacturing business, especially targeting at network
services provider customers from Europe or the United
States. The advantages of directly collaborating with network
services providers are that expenses on middlemen can be
saved, and that a more stable customer base and more
competitive pricings may be secured. As for the SBU’s
products, the SBU is to target on two fronts this year - the
first is to cut cost so as to make the SBU’s products more
price competitive and more affordable to the customers, and
the second is to enhance their application functions especially
those functions which can match well with the services
provided by network operators like push email and download
of songs and video, etc. To develop more competitive
products swiftly, the SBU needs good support from our
technology partners. The SBU will continue to strengthen
and consolidate its relationship with the technology partners
so as to secure better technology support in areas like Edge
or 3G telecommunication technology.

The next year will come with both challenges and
opportunities. With the Group’s rich experience in product
development and the sound and solid relationship with the
Group’s important customers and technology partners, and
also with more competitive products to be launched, the
Group believes that the SBU’s business will have
improvement this year.
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ORIGINAL DESIGN MANUFACTURING (“ODM”)
Review

The sales turnover of the SBU has grown to approximately
HK$650 million this year, representing an increase of
approximately 10% as compared with last year’s annual
figure. The business with the Group’s strategic customers in
Japan keeps growing and becomes one of the Group’s core
businesses. This is supported by a stable growth of Japanese
electronic dictionary market and the enhancement of
products’ functional features. The SBU’s engineering
capability and technology know-how has been enhanced and
enriched with accumulated experience and through sound
research and development in wireless technology and
software engineering. With an increase in gross revenue,
the SBU’s net profit has slightly increased as compared with
that of previous financial year, despite that the percentage
of net profit margin has experienced a slight decline. Since
the end of last year, shipment of new products to the Group’s
new strategic customer in Europe has started. The Group
expects the sales volume to grow in the coming years.

Outlook

The SBU is making a strong move in developing new
businesses in newly emerging electronic product markets
such as multimedia products utilizing various kinds of wireless
technology and new unique devices. These new projects are
expected to make contribution to the SBU’s continuous
growth in sales turnover and to further boost up its profit.
Strategic business partnership with several key component
suppliers and customers is and will be further strengthened,
with an aim to creating new and unique products or bringing
in new competitive features for the existing products. The
Group continuously invests to expand its team to manage
efficiently the potential new businesses currently under
development or businesses under negotiation with new
customers in Japan, the United States, and others.
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CORPORATE AFFAIRS

Corporate Governance

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH (Chairman), Mr. Ho
Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason and a
non-executive director, Mr. Lo Chi Chung, William. During
the year, the Audit Committee has held four meetings with
93.75% attendance to review the accounting principles and
practices adopted and to discuss and evaluate internal control
procedures, risk management and financial reporting matters.
It also ensures that the Group complies with all applicable
laws and regulations.

After each audit committee meeting, the Audit Committee
Chairman will present a report to the Board which highlights
any significant issues discussed in the meeting for the
Board’s information and consideration.

To assist the Audit Committee to carry out its duties, the
Process Improvement and Internal Audit (PIIA) Subcommittee
was formed in 2002 to provide support to frontline functions
in improving business operations and performing internal
audit. Internal audit reports will be directly sent to the Audit
Committee periodically.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee was established in 2001
to help Directors identify and assess business risks.
Corresponding strategies are formulated and
management system is implemented to prevent and manage

risk

market and operational risks. During the SARS outbreak,
the Risk Management Committee has held meetings to
formulate precautionary measures and business contingency
plans in quick response to the potential threat posted to the
organization so as to minimize its impacts.

Executive Management Committee

The Executive Management Committee was established in
2005 to operate as a general management committee under
the authority of the Board. The Executive Management
Committee consists of the Executive Directors of the Board.
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CORPORATE AFFAIRS (Continued)

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was formed in 1996 to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure in relation to remuneration of directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee comprises an
executive director, Mr. Tam Wai Ho (Chairman) and two
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Ho Kwok Shing,
Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason.

Share Option Committee

The Share Option Committee consisting of two executive
directors, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (Chairman) and Mr.
Lee Koon Hung, was formed in 1996 to deal with issues
regarding to granting of share options under the Company’s
share option scheme. In any case, the grant of the Company’s
share options to any Director or his associates requires the
approval of the Company’s independent non-executive
directors.

Code of Best Practice

The Directors are of the opinion that throughout the year
ended 31st March, 2005, the Company has complied with
the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), which
came in force prior to 1st January 2005.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms
no less exactly than the required standard set out in the
Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of the Directors,
none of the Directors has not complied with, for any part of
the accounting period under review, the required standard
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
director’s securities transactions.
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CORPORATE AFFAIRS (Continued)

Investor Relations

The Group always puts emphasis on communicating with
investors and is committed to enhancing investor relationship
by increasing its transparency to the investor community.
Measures to keep investors informed of the Group’s latest
developments comprehensively and timely include regular
meetings, presentations, posting of press release and
announcements on the Group’s website, visits to the
manufacturing plant and e-mail news updates.

Employees Relations

As at 31st March, 2005, the Group has on its payroll 266
(2004: 256) employees in Hong Kong and 4,118 (2004: 4,261)
in Mainland China, representing an increase of about 4%
and a decrease of about 3% respectively as compared with
prior year. Currently, the Group has no employee (2004: 78)
in Singapore. In addition to salary remuneration and usual
fringe benefits such as annual leave, medical insurance and
provident fund, the Group also provides Share Incentive Plans
for executive directors and senior staff.

I's the usual practice that the Group’s management conveys
and delivers the Group’s strategic policies and developments
to its senior staff at its half-yearly communication sessions.
These staff communication sessions are held after the results
announcements so as to keep employees abreast of the
Group’s developments and also to facilitate two-way dialogue
between the management and the staff. Intranet is another
effective means often used to ensure free flow of information
across different staff levels and to promote information and
experience sharing. All staff are encouraged to express their
views and feelings and to propose suggestions on different
aspects. Employee satisfaction surveys are conducted
regularly to assist the senior management in understanding
various problems faced by the staff so as to formulate
appropriate solutions.
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CORPORATE AFFAIRS (Continued)

Employees Relations (Continued)

A team of competent work force is crucial in maintaining the
Group’s competitiveness. The Group has launched a Personal
Continuous Improvement Objective (PCIO) program this year
to encourage all staff to strive for personal competency. All
staff are required to set at least one personal continuous
improvement objective to work on, which is expected to be
achieved within one fiscal year. The PCIO targets on
individual capabilities enhancement focusing on individual’s
competency, knowledge or skills that are conducive and
helpful to discharging his/her duty. In addition to in-house
training, the Group also provides education subsidies to its
staff for certain training programmes conducted by external
parties and that the skills are required by the group.
Meanwhile, the Group has appointed a number of
professional training consultants to run workshops for
enhancing mid level management executives’ leadership
capabilities, communication skills and team spirit.

In this year, the Company has also organized the “Staff
Hiking Day” and the “Spring Party 2005” for all employees to
take part in. Activities like these may foster good personal
relationship and communication among the staff and also
help build good team spirit.

For community service, the Group has sponsored a team to
participate in the Oxfam Trailwalker 2004, a fund raising
charity event.
completed the MacLehose Trail 100km walk.

The sponsored employees successfully
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1ISO9001 AND 1SO14001

In order to enhance the administrative efficiency, the ISO9001
Quality Management System and 1ISO14001 Environmental
Management System have been combined since 2000. On-
site surveillance assessment is conducted regularly by
independent assessors to ensure compliance and continual
improvement. Internal audit teams have been organized to
perform compliance audit on an on-going basis. The Group
has upgraded the system to attain the new ISO9001: 2000
standard.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TAM Wai Ho, Samson, aged 41, is the Chairman and one
of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for the
Group’s corporate planning and financial management. He
is one of the members of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since November 1996. He graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree
in Science. He received “The Young Industrialist Award of
Hong Kong” awarded by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries in September 1992 and was awarded as one of
the “1997 Ten Outstanding Young Persons” in November
1997. He is the President of the Hong Kong Association for
the Advancement of Science and Technology, the Deputy
Chairman of the Hong Kong Productivity Council, the Vice
Chairman of PRD Council of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and a member of The Hong Kong — European
Union Business Co-operation Committee. He is the younger
brother of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas.

TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, aged 43, is the Managing Director
and one of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for
the overall marketing and sales strategies of the Group’s
products. He has a Diploma in Electronic Engineering from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has over twenty
years of experience in marketing electronic components and
consumer electronic products. He received “Advanced
Technology Development Award” of “Capital Magazine’s
Outstanding Information Technology and Financial Enterprise
Awards” in August 2001. He is the elder brother of Mr. Tam
Wai Ho, Samson.

TAM Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, aged 37, is the wife of Mr. Tam
Wai Ho, Samson. She joined the Group in February 1992
and is responsible for human resources management,
administrative matters and electronic publishing of the Group.
She is one of the members of the Share Option Committee
of the Company since November 1996. She has a Bachelor’s
degree in Arts from the University of Hong Kong and a
Master’'s degree in Training and Human Resource
Management from the University of Leicester, U.K., and has
over fifteen years of experience in management and
administration.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Kazuhiro OTANI, aged 44, joined the Group as Executive
Director in April 1997. He is responsible for OEM/ODM
business in the Strategic Product Division, corporate business
planning and corporate sourcing strategy. He graduated from
the Kansai University of Foreign Studies in Osaka, Japan
with a Bachelor of Arts in Foreign Languages, and has been
working for a Japanese electronics company for fourteen
years before he joined the Group. He has spent the latter
ten years in the Hong Kong office of this Japanese company
since 1987, being responsible for sales and marketing of
electronic components such as IC, LCD, etc.

LEE Koon Hung, aged 42, joined the Group in 1988 and
was appointed as Executive Director of the Group in April
1998. He is responsible for the smartphone and PDA
business of the Group. He is one of the members of the
Share Option Committee of the Company since April 2003.
He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with Higher Certificate in Electronic Engineering and obtained
a Bachelor’'s degree in computer science from Asia
International Open University and a Master of Science’s
degree in Engineering Business Management from the
University of Warwick, U.K. He has twenty-one years of
experience in product development.

Dr. FOK Ting Yeung, James, aged 56, joined the Group as
Executive Director in April 1999. He is responsible for the
Group’s strategic operations. He holds a Bachelor of Science
in Engineering and a Master of Philosophy from the University
of Hong Kong, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree from the
University of London. He has thirty-five years of experience
in many areas, including academic research, industrial
research, production management, product development,
consulting and strategic business development. Before joining
the Group, he served Hong Kong Productivity Council for
thirteen years as Divisional Manager of Electronics Services
Division, Branch Director of Design and Automation Branch
and finally as Deputy Executive Director. He is a panel
member of Small Entrepreneur Research Assistance
Programme of Innovation and Technology Commission, a
member of Committee on Information Technology Training
and Development of Vocational Training Council, a member
of the Design Council of Hong Kong and a member of the
Advisory Committee on Electronic Engineering of two local
universities.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

LO Chi Chung, William, aged 45, is a Non-executive Director
of the Group. He is one of the members of the Audit
Committee of the Company since March 1999. He graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He also holds a M.B.A. degree from the
University of Warwick, U.K. Prior to joining the Group in July
19983, Mr. Lo has worked for several major international
corporations including IBM and Siemens. He was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Group in November 1996
and resigned with effect from April 2003 but remains as a
Non-executive Director in the Board. He is now the Group
Finance Director of K. Wah International Holdings Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
YUNG Wing Ki, Samuel mH, aged 47, Certified Financial
Planner®™, Registered Financial Consultant, Chartered
Financial Practitioner, is a Senior District Director of American
International Assurance Company (Bermuda) Limited. He is
also an Independent Director and a Member of the Audit
Committee of China World Trade Corporation. He joined the
Group as Independent Non-executive Director in January
1995 and is one of the members of the Audit Committee
since March 1999. He has over twenty-three years of
experience in insurance and received “The Ten Outstanding
Young Persons Award” in November 1994. He was the
Chairman of The Outstanding Young Persons’ Association
(2000-2002), the President of The Life Underwriter
Association Hong Kong (1991), the President of the General
Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong (1995-1996),
the Co-Chairman of the Asia Pacific Life Insurance Council
(1996-1997) and the International Committee Chairman of
GAMA International (1997-1999). He is a Council Member of
Kwai Tsing District Council and The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. He also sits in a number of fund raising committees
as either chairman or committee member for several major
charities and Government committees.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

HO Kwok Shing, Harris, aged 45, is the director of E-Order
Industries Limited. He joined the Group as an Independent
Non-executive Director in January 1995. He is the member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of
the Company since November 1996 and March 1999
respectively. He has a Diploma in Journalism from the Shue
Yan College and a Master’'s degree in Business
Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He has over twenty-two years of experience in marketing
consumer electronic products.

WONG Kon Man, Jason, aged 41, joined the Group as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of the
Audit Committee in September 2004. He is also a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company since
January 2005. He graduated from The University of Hawaii
with a Bachelor degree in Business Administration majoring
in Accounting. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has over ten years of
experience in accounting and auditing. At present, Mr. Wong
is the Managing Director of Fortune Capital Group Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Masakatsu TSUJI, aged 67, is the Deputy Managing Director
— Manufacturing of the Group. He has extensive experience
in manufacturing of electronic products such as personal
computers and personal digital assistants. Prior to joining
the Group in July 1999, he worked for a famous Japanese
electronics company as a senior management staff for thirty-
eight years and has considerable overseas working
experience in USA, Korea and other Southeast Asian
countries.

LUK Chui Yung, Judith, aged 38, is the General Manager
of the Electronic Dictionary Division of the Group. She
graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a
Higher Diploma in Business Management. She has sixteen
years of experience in marketing & sales of consumer
electronic products. She joined the Group in 1989. She is
the wife of Mr. Lee Koon Hung.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

LI Chi Hung, Francis, aged 47, is the Executive Director,
Marketing and Business Development of Group Sense PDA
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. He holds a Master degree
in Business Administration from University of East Asia. Prior
to joining the Group in December 2003, he has more than
twenty years of experience in marketing and manufacturing
of consumer electronic products.

CHAN Ho Bun, Steve, aged 44, is the General Manager of
the Group’s Strategic Product Division. He graduated from
University of Birmingham, U.K. with a Bachelor of Science
in Computer Science. He has over nineteen years of
experience in the field of electronics and computer products.
He joined the Group in 1993.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates are
design, manufacture and sale of a range of electronic
handheld products, primarily electronic dictionaries,
smartphones and personal digital assistants, and manufacture

of original design manufacturing products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March,
2005 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 44 of the annual report.

An interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share was
paid to the shareholders during the year. The directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents
per ordinary share to the shareholders on the register of
members on 18th August, 2005 , amounting to approximately
HK$36,110,000, and the retention of the remaining profit for
the year of approximately HK$14,060,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31st March, 2005:

(i) The Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 34% and 74%,
respectively, of the Group’s total turnover.

(i) The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 17% and 44%,
respectively, of the Group’s total purchases (not
including purchases of items which are of capital
nature).

According to the understanding of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholders who owned
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any
interest in the five largest customers nor the five largest
suppliers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired leasehold improvement
of approximately HK$1.5 million, furniture, fixtures and
equipment of approximately HK$3.0 million, plant and
machinery of approximately HK$9.6 million, toolings and
moulds of approximately HK$9.9 million and motor vehicles
of approximately HK$0.4 million.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 14 to the financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES
Details of the major properties of the Group at 31st March,
2005 are set out on page 108 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Tam Wai Ho, Samson (Chairman)

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director)
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

Kazuhiro Otani

Lee Koon Hung

Fok Ting Yeung, James

Non-executive director:
Lo Chi Chung, William

Independent non-executive directors:

Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH

Ho Kwok Shing, Harris

Wong Kon Man, Jason (appointed on 20th September, 2004)
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (Continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian and Mr. Lee Koon Hung retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason, who was newly appointed by the
board of Directors on 20th September, 2004, will also retire
from office in accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the
Company’s Bye-laws and he will, being eligible, offer himself
for re-election.

All non-executive directors have been appointed for a term
of no more than one year.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel
MH, Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man,
Jason, an annual confirmation of their independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and considers the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31st March, 2005, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors, were as follows:

FREBRROBE (F8)

Number of ordinary shares held (long position)

HEBRTRAE
EEME 8 AR RIRER Hit s 2B
Expns Nature Personal Family Other #E % of issued
Name of director of interests interests interests interests Total share capital
ERE=R ffzz1 k2 26,000,000 - 537,877,118 563,877,118 46.85
Tam Wai Ho, Samson Notes 1 & 2
EREER fifzz1 k2 29,000,000 - 537,877,118 566,877,118 47.10
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas Notes 1 & 2
BERE ft &t 1 2,300,000 - 537,877,118 540,177,118 44.88
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian Note 1
RAFE 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.17
Kazuhiro Otani
Epnd 1,676,000 550,000 - 2,226,000 0.18
Lee Koon Hung
‘LR 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 0.25

Lo Chi Chung, William
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

Notes:

1. The 537,877,118 shares are registered in the name of
Earnmill Holdings Limited, a company ultimately beneficially
owned by The Samson 1992 Trust and The Thomas 1992
Trust in equal shares. The Samson 1992 Trust is a
discretionary trust, the discretionary beneficiaries of which
include Mr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson and Mrs. Tam Mui Ka
Wai, Vivian (spouse of Mr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson). The
Thomas 1992 Trust is a discretionary trust, the discretionary
beneficiaries of which include Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
and Mrs. Tam Ng Lai Yuen, Jocelyn (spouse of Mr. Tam
Wai Tong, Thomas). Mr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson, Mrs. Tam
Mui Ka Wai, Vivian and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, being
Directors, are directors of Earnmill Holdings Limited.

2. Included above is the 20,000,000 shares which are jointly
owned by Mr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson and Mr. Tam Wai
Tong, Thomas.

The interests of the Directors and their associates in the
share options granted by the Company are set out in the
section “Share Options” in the Report of the Directors.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2005, none of the
Directors or their associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.
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BEIRE

SHARE OPTIONS

KA RENB AR ZEERBRETEIFFSX  Particulars of the Company’s and its subsidiary’s share option

N B S R 2R M 5E30 ©

schemes are set out in note 30.

ARARZEERBERAFENZEEHFFEMW  The following table discloses movements in the Company’s

™

=

Directors

EER

Tam Wai Ho, Samson

BREZE
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas

EERE

Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

RAME

Kazuhiro Otani

TR (Kit)
Lee Koon Hung (Note)

EE A
Fok Ting Yeung, James

By (EF)

Total (Directors)

(3=
Employees

wE(EE)
Total (Employees)

@Et
Grand Total

share options during the year:

REERKRE REERER

e R AT 6 FRFEH FREH ERTE e R AT

i HH Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding
Option at beginning during during during at end
grant date  of the year the year the year the year  of the year
12.8.2002 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
24.3.2003 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
19.4.2004 - 900,000 - - 900,000
12.8.2002 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
24.3.2003 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
19.4.2004 - 900,000 - - 900,000
12.8.2002 400,000 - - (400,000) -
24.3.2003 400,000 - - (400,000) -
19.4.2004 - 400,000 - - 400,000
12.8.2002 - - - - -
24.3.2003 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
19.4.2004 - 900,000 - - 900,000
12.8.2002 - - - - -
24.3.2003 - - - - -
19.4.2004 - 1,400,000 - - 1,400,000
12.8.2002 400,000 - - - 400,000
24.3.2003 400,000 - - - 400,000
19.4.2004 - 400,000 - - 400,000
6,600,000 4,900,000 - (5,800,000) 5,700,000

12.8.2002 31,000 - - (1,000) 30,000
24.3.2003 528,000 - - (392,000) 136,000
19.4.2004 - 6,006,000 (827,000) - 5,179,000
559,000 6,006,000 (827,000) (393,000) 5,345,000

7,159,000 10,906,000 (827,000)  (6,193,000) 11,045,000
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BrARABRE (&) SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
FHEELAARENFBEHI BT : Details of specific categories of options are as follows:
RH BB BXH TS TEE
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price
BT
HK$
12.8.2002 12.8.2002 — 16.6.2003 17.6.2003 — 16.6.2008 0.250
24.3.2003 24.3.2003 - 19.1.2004 20.1.2004 - 19.1.2009 0.202
19.4.2004 19.4.2004 - 19.1.2005 20.1.2005 - 19.1.2010 0.950

Wt ZRBEREZEBAARRRZEE » WERT  Note: The wife of Mr. Lee Koon Hung, who is also an employee

KRR BERRE R_ZZRF=A=+ of the Company, was granted options of the Company. At
—H - ZE LA 2 BB #500,00018 5% R AR 31st March, 2005, 500,000 options of Mrs. Lee were
BEBELE LVNEBHEE 2 BERREREZ included under the interests in options of Mr. Lee Koon
A e Hung set out above.

RAFTRNEBZEEBLRRERLBE (BD-Z  The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately

TEMA+NE) 2 HEA0.9287C »  before the date of grant on 19th April, 2004 was HK$0.92.

RRABRHEBRZELERBRETEBR 2N The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares

TR U T E R0.798 T o immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised were HK$0.79.

RBE2-_ZEZRF=A=+—HILIREITFEE The fair value of an option on one share of the Company
B09SE Tz BERKEZ A FEEME A granted during the year ended 31st March, 2005 with exercise
0.23487C » U N W AR T — T BETE LR price per share of HK$0.95 is estimated at HK$0.234. The
REEBEXAFEATEERARACETE following significant assumptions were used to derive the
fair value, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model:

BAOERENELERRBFR (F) 1.68

Estimated expected life of options granted (years)

REBEBERERBTEZ B KIE 61.69%
Expected volatility based on historical share price movement

ERINEESEFER 1.60%
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes Rate

BREBET _EAARENREBAEFREMWAX 3.80%
Expected annual dividend yield based on dividend payments in the last 12 months

WU [El 2 8 5T SRR 2 A 5.47%
Risk-of-forfeiture adjustment
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of
assumptions, including the volatility of share price and
dividend yield. Because changes in assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimated, in the directors’
opinion, the actual value of the options may differ from the
estimated fair value of the options due to limitations of the
existing model.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year, the Group purchased electronic components
amounting to approximately HK$8,000,000 from Genfield
Enterprises Limited, a company in which Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas, has beneficial interests.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors
who do not have any interest in the above transactions, the
transactions were carried out on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 31st March, 2005.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the discloseable connected transactions for the
year are set out in note 40 to the financial statements. In the
opinion of those independent non-executive directors not
having any interest in the above transactions, the above
transactions were carried out on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st March, 2005, the register of substantial shareholders
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain directors, the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests and short positions in the
issued capital of the Company:

FREBRROEAE (FR)

BRERE

Name of shareholder

Earnmill Holdings Limited

HIEESEENT
Value Partners Limited

BEE
Cheah Cheng Hye

1. ZEREE X EERA CES D FTINE
EER e

2. EEESEERNAMERREKLE  HEHA
84374000H§H§1’ﬁ WEEEEBBESIEE
SEIENEB1.82% L a MR IEHEZE
Bein #Eam o

R EXEEEIN R_BTRF=A=+—
B BEEMALTEHNEARAEAREES
K BB GBI 78 17 AN 2 B 4% 58 69 A A0 Sk AR R Ak 4n
ZHEDIORRE ©

HERTREAZES L
% of issued
share capital

Number of
ordinary shares held
(long position)

537,877,118 44.69

(K1 7% 1) (Note 1)
84,374,000 7.01

(K1 7%2) (Note 2)
84,374,000 7.01

(K1 #%2) (Note 2)

Notes:
1. The shareholding is also included in the “Directors’ Interests
in Securities” disclosed above.

2. Value Partners Limited is holding the 84,374,000 shares as

an investment manager. Mr. Cheah Cheng Hye is deemed
to be interested in such shares through his 31.82% interest
in Value Partners Limited.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2005, the Company
had not been notified by any persons who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the SFO.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to the existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on
the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Company’s directors.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

The Directors are of the opinion that throughout the year
ended 31st March, 2005, the Company has complied with
the Code of Best Practice, as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules which came in force prior to 1st January, 2005.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms
no less exactly than the required standard set out in the
Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of the Directors,
none of the Directors has not complied with, for any part of
the accounting period under review, the required standard
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
director’s securities transactions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel mH (Chairman), Mr. Ho
Kwok Shing, Harris, and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason and a
non-executive director, Mr. Lo Chi Chung, William.

During the year, the audit committee has held four meetings
with 93.75% attendance to review the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discuss internal
control and financial reporting matters including the review
of the audited financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (Cont’d)

mEBRSEE POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT
HEHRZEZARBHINRAYEREM T  Details of significant event occurring after the balance sheet
39 - date are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

% B Em AUDITORS

BIETEE) e BAEMR A 2T AZEEI ZRE A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
EERARRICKREBFRE LIEE - to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors

of the Company.

EEEGW On behalf of the Board
FE Tam Wai Ho, Samson
EER Chairman

o Hong Kong
—EThELA+TIMA 14th July, 2005
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AR EF

Report of the Auditors

Deloitte.
=)

BEE (BR)ERIAETRR
(EBERZZIMAELZHRAA])

AZHBEE TR EZHNE442 1058 LREE
BERMZEHRAUBH M BERE
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GROUP SENSE (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 44 to
105 which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair
view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies
are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made
by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the circumstances of the Company and the Group,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
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EE (BEB) B8R 238 Group Sense (International) Limited

2B EESE(E)
Report of the Auditors (Cont’d)

BASIS OF OPINION (Continued)

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial statements. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as
at 31st March, 2005 and of the profit and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
14th July, 2005
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Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other operating income

Research and development expenses

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Share of results of associates
Gain on repurchase of convertible

redeemable preferred shares
issued to minority shareholders

of a subsidiary

Reversal of premium on convertible

redeemable preferred shares
issued to minority shareholders

of a subsidiary

Profit before tax
Income tax credit

Profit before minority interests

Minority interests

Profit for the year

Dividends

Earnings per share
Basic (HK cents)

Diluted (HK cents)

—EZRFEFHE Annual Report 2005

44

For the year ended 31st March, 2005

31(b)

31(b)

S 251 —zEImE
2005 2004
TR FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
1,309,630 1,355,648
(998,786) (1,019,446)
310,844 336,202
13,396 14,690
(75,517) (68,014)
(83,709) (86,132)
(95,995) (93,973)
69,019 102,773
(1,500) (2,474)
(4,758) -
- (2,408)

- 46,900

- 15,015

62,761 159,811
226 1,698
62,987 161,509
(829) 575
62,158 162,084
48,098 41,919
5.2 13.6

5.2 135
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R-ZZEZTRF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2005

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Interests in associates
Investments in securities
Other receivables

Other asset

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Amounts due from associates
Tax recoverable

Investments in securities
Bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Product warranty provision
Bank borrowings
— due within one year

Obligations under finance leases

— due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

45

P &E

Notes

14
15
17
18
19
20
27

21
22
19

18

23

24

25

26

S it —TEME
2005 2004
FHR FHR
HK$’000 HK$'000
179,109 186,577
17,689 27,960
37,984 36,652
3,750 5,000
10,085 10,015
248,617 266,204
189,156 159,853
85,958 186,540
49,331 51,460
6,183 5,739
72 122
8,986 =
56,784 60,304
225,616 182,360
622,086 646,378
168,453 164,632
59,170 69,486
500 500
26,654 63,056
- 29
254,777 297,703
367,309 348,675
615,926 614,879
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Cont’d)

R-ZZEZTRF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2005

“EEhE —ZETNEF
2005 2004
i3 FER FHBIT
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
BEXREE Capital and reserves

&N Share capital 28 120,366 119,746
& Reserves 484,656 469,114
BEES Shareholders’ funds 605,022 588,860
DEHBRRER Minority interests 829 =

EkRBEE Non-current liabilities
BITEE-—R—FRIH Bank borrowings — due after one year 25 9,988 25,755
ELERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 27 87 264
10,075 26,019
HEZERFIRBER Total equity and non-current liabilities 615,926 614,879

HNFAME105B 2 HBHRREN _ZZRF L The financial statements on pages 44 to 105 were approved and
BtMBEESeRE YHTHIEERRESEESE  authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14th July, 2005

F: and are signed on its behalf by:
BERER BER
Tam Wai Ho, Samson Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
EZE EZE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amount due from an associate

of the Group

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Other payables

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Share capital
Reserves

Shareholders’ funds

HER

Tam Wai Ho, Samson

EF
DIRECTOR

NAEESR

5 R

Company Balance Sheet

R-ZZEZTRF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2005

P &E

Notes

16

28
29

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas

47

“EEREF —ZENEF

2005 2004

FTHERT FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

- 30,161

40 20

592,353 555,385

12 12

2,976 1,501

595,381 556,918

448 1,330

594,933 555,588

594,933 585,749

120,366 119,746

474,567 466,003

594,933 585,749
EERE

EZE

DIRECTOR

TR FPF RS Annual Report 2005
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THE GROUP

At 1st April, 2003

Exchange difference on
translation of overseas
operations not
recognised in the
income statement

Shares repurchased
and cancelled

Share repurchase
expenses

Issue of shares

Profit for the year

Dividends paid

At 31st March, 2004
and 1st April, 2004

Exchange difference on
translation of overseas
operations not
recognised in the
income statement

Issue of shares

Realised on disposal of
a subsidiary

Profit for the year

Dividends paid

At 31st March, 2005

For the year ended 31st March, 2005

N ZREF
k&  ROEE RERE SERGE HERE EXRG (B#) ag
Capital Accumulated
Share Share  redemption Special Goodwill  Translation profit
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve (losses) Total
TEL TAT THT TET THT THTL THL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
118,450 409,843 285 (60,819) (15,550) 1,356 (5,337) 448,228
_ - - - = (579) = (573)
(134) (349) 134 - - - - (349)
- 6) - - - - - )
1,430 1,826 - - - - - 3,256
- - - - - - 162,084 162,084
- - - - - - (23,781) (23,781)
119,746 411,315 419 (60,819) (15,550) 783 132,966 588,860
- - - - - (88) - (88)
620 747 - - - - - 1,367
- - - - - 679 - 679
- - - - - - 62,158 62,158
_ - - - = = (47,954) (47,954)
120,366 412,062 419 (60,819) (15,550 1,374 147,170 605,022
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Cont’d)

HE_TZTRAF=HA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st March, 2005

ERAABEATNAREBEF#E 2B EAFUWE  Included in the above is the Group’s share of post acquisition

% 25HE51E accumulated losses of the associates as follows:
—E2EAF —ETWEF
2005 2004
TR FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REA—H At 1st April (22,381) (19,978)
BhEENREE Share of results of associates - (2,403)
R=A=+—8H At 31st March (22,381) (22,381)

BHEEEMEEBZWB AR ZRMEEEAN  The special reserve represents the difference between the

RalRARRBRHBE—NLAL=F LTWAISEek nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and

ARSRWEFEEMRET RMEEZZ - the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation prior to
the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE_TTRAF=HA=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31st March, 2005
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FEEE)
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HENE  BERRE
Z S 3A

REXKR (ERA) EE
ZERE

Operating activities

Profit from operations

Adjustments for:
Depreciation

Allowance for slow moving inventories
Amortisation of intangible assets
Allowance for doubtful receivables
Impairment loss on development costs
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Interest income

Impairment loss on investments in securities -

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Increase in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables
Increase in other receivables
(Increase) decrease in amounts

due from associates
Increase in trade payables

(Decrease) increase in other payables
Decrease in amounts due to associates

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”)/
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Increase in investment in securities

Addition of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary
(net of cash and cash equivalents

disposed of)

Decrease in other receivable

Decrease in bank deposits
Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Net cash (used in) generated
from investing activities

—Z2Z R FRFIRE Annual Report 2005

—ZEERF —ZENEF
2005 2004
B & FTHEx FHET
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
69,019 102,773
29,479 32,833
14,831 24,381
5,526 5,950
6,908 3,321
1,195 7,249
502 32
(1,326) (1,171)
2,425
126,134 177,793
(47,610) (45,586)
65,441 (106,974)
(7,411) (2,821)
(444) 14,270
29,708 65,267
(6,167) 10,658
- (877)
159,651 111,730
(21) (2,317)
50 207
159,680 109,620
(24,309) (20,741)
(10,318) -
(6,140) (10,443)
32 10,511 -
8,750 7,500
3,520 23,854
1,326 1,171
521 -
(16,139) 1,341
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Cont’d)

HE_TZTRAF=HA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st March, 2005

Financing activities

Dividend paid

(Decrease) increase in trust
receipt loans

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid

Repayment of obligations under
finance leases

Issue of share capital

Repurchase of convertible redeemable
preferred shares issued to minority
shareholders of a subsidiary

Repurchase of ordinary shares
of the Company

Share repurchase expenses

New bank loans obtained

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at

the end of the year, represented by:
Bank balances and cash

51
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2005 2004
FTHEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(47,954) (23,781)
(32,832) 17,277
(19,337) (5,052)
(1,500) (2,474)
(29) (831)
1,367 3,256

- (35,000)

- (349)

- (5)

- 25,000
(100,285) (21,959)
43,256 89,002
182,360 93,354
- 4
225,616 182,360
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE_TTRAF=HA=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31st March, 2005
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GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries and
associates are design, manufacture and sale of a
range of electronic handheld products, primarily
electronic dictionaries, mobile phones and personal
digital assistants, and manufacture of original design
manufacturing (“ODM”) products.

POTENTIAL IMPACT ARISING FROM THE
RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

In 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) issued a number of new
or revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (hereinafter collectively referred
to as “new HKFRSs”) which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2005 except for HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.
The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs
in the financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2005.

HKFRS 3 is applicable to business combinations for
which the agreement date is on or after 1st January,
2005. The Group has not entered into any business
combination for which the agreement date is on or
after 1st January, 2005. Therefore HKFRS 3 did not
have any impact on the Group for the year ended
31st March, 2005.

The Group has commenced considering the potential
impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to determine whether these new HKFRSs
would have a significant impact on how its results of
operations and financial position are prepared and
presented. These new HKFRSs may result in changes
in the future as to how the results and financial position
are prepared and presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
HE_TZTRAF=HA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st March, 2005
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention as modified for
revaluation of certain investments in securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting
policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective date
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances
amongst group enterprises are eliminated on
consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary or an associate at the date
of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition after 1st April, 2001 is
capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over
its useful economic life. Goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is included within the
carrying amount of the associate. Goodwill arising on
the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately
in the balance sheet.

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1st April, 2001
continues to be held in reserves, and will be charged
to the income statement at the time of disposal of the
relevant subsidiary or associate, or at such time as
the goodwill is determined to be impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
HE_TTRAF=HA=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31st March, 2005
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HEWE

Leasehold properties

MEREE

Leasehold improvements

RE  EKERRKE
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

B M 2R

Plant and machinery

TARIR
Toolings and moulds

YT

Motor vehicles
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Turnover

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable
for goods sold, net of returns and sales taxes, and services
rendered by the Group to outside customers.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are

delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s rights
to receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write
off the cost of property, plant and equipment, over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line

method, at the following rates per annum:

2%

25%

25%

15% — 25%

50%

25%
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of
an asset is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the income statement.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or where shorter, the terms of the
relevant leases.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, such that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost, as reduced by any
identified impairment losses.

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of its
associates for the year. In the consolidated balance
sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group’s
share of the net assets of the associates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-
date basis and are initially measured at cost.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities
are classified as investment securities and other
investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for
an identified long-term strategic purpose, are
measured at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as
reduced by any impairment loss that is other than
temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains and losses included in net profit or
loss for the year.

Other asset
Other asset is stated at cost as reduced by any
identified impairment losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Land use rights
Land use rights are amortised over the terms of the
relevant rights.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred. An
internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised
on a straight-line basis over its useful life.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill (or negative goodwill)
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited in the consolidated income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity.

Assets held under finance leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets concerned to the
Group. Assets held under finance leases are
capitalised at their fair values at the date of acquisition.
The corresponding liability to the lessor, net of interest
charges, is included in the balance sheet as a finance
lease obligation. Finance costs, which represent the
difference between the total leasing commitments and
the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to
the income statement over the period of the relevant
lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period.

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the relevant lease terms.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of
the transactions or at the contracted settlement rate.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in such
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on
the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on
exchange are included in net profit or loss for the
year.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s overseas operations are translated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising if
any, are classified as equity and transferred to the
Group’s translation reserve. Such translation
differences are recognised as income or expenses in
the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
plans, such as the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and state-managed retirement benefits scheme etc
are charged as expenses as they fall due.
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INCOME STATEMENT

TURNOVER

RESULT
Segment result

Profit from operations
Finance costs
Loss on disposal of

a subsidiary

Profit before tax
Income tax credit

Profit before minority
interests

—Z2Z R FRFIRE Annual Report 2005 60

SEGMENTS
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is engaged in

design, manufacture and sale of a range of electronic

handheld products and ODM products. The segmental

information is disclosed in accordance with different types

of operations. These operations are the basis on which

the Group reports its primary segment information.

Segmental information about these businesses is

presented below:

2005
BrET R &5t
Em LYEEM REBE
Electronic
handheld ODM
products products Consolidated
TERT TER TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
659,195 650,435 1,309,630
42,688 26,331 69,019
69,019
(1,500)
(4,758)
62,761
226
62,987
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SEGMENTS (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)
2005

¥BRHWETESE (B) 4.
XKD HE(E)

—ETRF

EEAER BALANCE SHEET
&E ASSETS

DHEEE Segment assets
EERIBEEE Deferred tax assets

] [ Wi 18 Tax recoverable
AOBECEEE Unallocated corporate

BRI

GELIEN
BB & 1B
HEME

BER&EEBE

RERE

RIEHRBE

assets
Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Unallocated corporate
liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital additions
Depreciation and
amortisation
Impairment loss on
development costs
Loss on disposal
of property, plant
and equipment
Allowance for slow-moving
inventories
Allowance for doubtful
receivables

61

BErE¥
Em

Electronic

handheld
products
TERT
HK$’000

450,353

110,941

17,665

20,691

1,195

502

14,831

6,908

B4R Et
EEEM

ODM
products
TER
HK$’000

351,665

116,734

12,784

14,314

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL

Consolidated
THER
HK$’000

802,018
10,085
72

58,528

870,703

227,675
87

37,090

264,852

30,449

35,005

1,195

502

14,831

6,908
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SEGMENTS (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

2004
2LEF RS
= m HEEm R
Electronic
handheld ODM
products products Consolidated
TET THET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
INCOME STATEMENT
TURNOVER 765,341 590,307 1,355,648
RESULT
Segment result 79,131 26,067 105,198
Impairment loss on
investments in securities
(note 18) (2,425)
Profit from operations 102,773
Finance costs (2,474)
Share of results of associates (2,403)
Gain on repurchase of
convertible redeemable
preferred shares issued
to minority shareholders
of a subsidiary 46,900
Reversal of premium on
convertible redeemable
preferred shares issued
to minority shareholders
of a subsidiary 15,015
Profit before tax 159,811
Income tax credit 1,698
Profit before minority interests 161,509
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SEGMENTS (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)

2004
2LEF RIS
Em EEEM RE B
Electronic
handheld ODM
products products Consolidated
TET THET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS
Segment assets 529,197 329,356 858,553
Deferred tax assets 10,015
Tax recoverable 122
Unallocated corporate assets 43,892
Consolidated total assets 912,582
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 139,752 92,741 232,493
Deferred tax liabilities 264
Unallocated corporate liabilities 90,965
Consolidated total liabilities 323,722
OTHER INFORMATION
Capital additions 24,623 6,561 31,184
Depreciation and amortisation 29,515 9,268 38,783
Impairment loss on
development costs 7,249 - 7,249
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 32 = 32
Allowance for slow-moving
inventories 24,381 - 24,381
Allowance for doubtful
receivables 3,321 - 3,321
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4. ¥BRHETESE (E) 4.
&5 8
THFHINAEEHERRME TS 25
i :

i Hong Kong

mE (FERN) The PRC (other than Hong Kong)

R D) e Other Asian markets

EEM North America

B Europe

hR Middle East

Aot Others

BHRERESE Impairment loss of investments
in securities

Yyl Profit from operations
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical segment

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
sales by geographical market, irrespective of the origin
of the goods:

BHEMSES ZHERA B RNz 5/
Sales revenue by Contribution to profit

geographical market from operations
—EERE —FENE ZEEnE “ZTEQNE
2005 2004 2005 2004
TR TATL FERL TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
165,719 136,992 25,014 28,035
71,213 174,746 (3,466) 7,780
980,088 961,017 32,970 49,418
53,040 49,385 9,402 12,273
21,735 30,962 1,310 7,192
17,809 2,064 3,790 502
26 482 1 )
1,309,630 1,355,648 69,019 105,198
- (2,425)
69,019 102,773
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SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical segment (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets, and additions to property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets, analysed by

geographical areas in which the assets are located:

PREAERERE

Carrying amount of
segment assets

N BER®RE

REFEEZEMN

Additions to
property, plant and

equipment and
intangible assets

it 3 32 “Z2IME ZBEBLE 3 k2
2005 2004 2005 2004
TR TER TR THEL
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Hong Kong 574,121 537,502 6,098 4,346
The PRC (other than Hong Kong) 243,197 308,080 21,164 16,395
Other Asian markets 43,228 56,863 3,187 10,443
860,546 902,445 30,449 31,184
5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
—E2hE —_ZTTWF
2005 2004
FTHET FTET
HK$’000 HK$°000
Other operating income is
analysed as follows:
Exchange gain - 406
Interest income 1,326 1,171
Others 12,070 13,113
13,396 14,690
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6. KREHF 6. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
g3 % g3 —TEMEF
2005 2004
TER FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BER T 2 kR Profit from operations has been
arrived at after charging:
RERBE Allowance for doubtful receivables 6,908 3,321
REEE Allowance for slow-moving inventories 14,831 24,381
EREERE (BE Amortisation of intangible assets
RRRERAES LA (HK$5,308,000 (2004: HK$5,716,000)
5,308,000 /5 7T is included in research and
(Z2ZWE development expenses and
5,716,000 #7T) R#H%E the remaining balance
EREETEX ) is included in administrative expenses) 5,526 5,950
ZEME & Auditors’ remuneration 848 957
mERSH Depreciation and amortisation 29,479 32,833
B B B AR (B Impairment loss on development costs 1,195 7,249
BHEBRERNE (K 18) Impairment loss on investments
in securities (note 18) - 2,425
HEME - BER Loss on disposal of property,
2 BEE plant and equipment 502 32
BEmA (BERE9 Staff costs (including
S ZESZME R directors’ emoluments stated in
Pt sk 34 2 RIKE 52 note 9 and retirement benefits scheme
fE3) contributions stated in note 34) 166,726 171,928
Bl & B A 7. FINANCE COSTS
—ERIF i 3 Juik:S
2005 2004
TAER FHET
HK$°000 HK$°000
e F B Interest on:
BARAFAZEER Bank borrowings wholly repayable
ZRITEE within five years 1,500 1,810
HEAH Finance leases - 9
EERE (fF:31b) Promissory notes (note 31b) - 655
1,500 2,474
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HE-HEARZEE
RZZEZENFNA+Z=A ' AEBEEET
—HHEE —NERAFERFERIENM
B A 7] — Group Sense Technology
(Singapore) Pte Limited ([GST/) i &
R TA—FMELTMARZEES
#) + YE(B 5#910,000,000/57C - RAI—4&
A AEBEREBREGSTH R KA
23,599,000/ 7T  ERAEMHRE - BRR
5 BE B R 44,758,000 TTE 1B ©

REEBH  GSTWEE A B FEIR
Bg5E32 o

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
On 12th August, 2004, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with a Singapore listed
company to dispose of its entire equity interest in a
subsidiary, Group Sense Technology (Singapore) Pte
Limited (“GST”), which was engaged in provision of
research and development services, for a
consideration of approximately HK$10,000,000. Under
the same agreement, the Group agreed to waive those
amounts due from GST amounting to approximately
HK$23,599,000 as part of the consideration. The
disposal resulted in a loss of approximately
HK$4,758,000.

The carrying amounts of the net liabilities of GST at
the date of disposal are disclosed in note 32.

= DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
“ETEF —ZETmE
2005 2004
FTAR FATT
HK$’000 HK$°000
E=me - Directors’ fees:
WITES Executive directors - =
FHITES Non-executive directors 125 100
BAUENTES Independent non-executive directors 314 200
439 300
WITESZHEMBS - Other emoluments for executive directors:
3 B K% EL At A5 ) Salaries and other benefits 10,785 12,388
BRTE A E B 5K Retirement benefit scheme contributions 498 499
11,722 13,187
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BE_TTHhF=A=t—RLFE

9. EHEM= (&)
EEHE DR THIRE -

Nil £ — HK$1,000,000 /& JT

HK$1,000,001 /& 7T — HK$1,500,000 /& 7T
HK$1,500,001 /& 7T — HK$2,000,000 /& 7T
HK$2,000,001 /& 7T — HK$2,500,000 /& 7T
HK$2,500,001 /% 7t — HK$3,000,000 /& 7T
HK$3,000,001 /% 7t — HK$3,500,000 /& 7T
HK$3,500,001 /% 7t — HK$4,000,000 /& 7T
HK$4,000,001 /& 7t — HK$4,500,000 /& 7T

HE_ZZTAER_FEEWNE=A=+
—BLtFE ASEETESLAMEe FE
=5 AR S| F 0 Ak AN A K& B B
ZAEHESRAE AR EBA 2 /E o b
EEERETHEE -

10. BEHS
EEH5MATHAIEMIRTES (DS
TOUE : 4f7) - HBIS 2 SHE5IR Lt
B3t R T ZRESHFAL(ZTEMN
E D) 2 HMEWMT

9.

10.

For the year ended 31st March, 2005

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Emoluments of the directors were within the following
bands:

—EE2RF —ZETMEF
2005 2004
ExgA E=HE
No. of No. of
directors directors

6 5

1 1

1 1

2 —

- 2

During the years ended 31st March, 2005 and 2004,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. In addition, no
directors waived any emoluments.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate emoluments of the 5 highest paid
individuals included 4 (2004: 4) executive directors of
the Company, whose emoluments are included in note
9 above. The emoluments of the remaining 1 (2004:
1) highest paid individual are as follows:

—EEREF —EEME

2005 2004

FTHx FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

i K H 4 42 F Salaries and allowances 1,106 1,029
RIRAE FIFT B4 5K Retirement benefits scheme contributions 43 43
1,149 1,072

HBIF—EERER_FTEEME=F=+
—BEFESRTESFTBREZHNESHE
71,000,001 7T = 1,500,000/ JT 2 A%
Bl °
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The emoluments of the remaining highest paid
individual were within the band of HK$1,000,001 —
HK$1,500,000 for the year ended 31st March, 2005
and 2004.
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FrigHi & INCOME TAX CREDIT
S —ZTWF
2005 2004
FTET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
AERERA : Current tax:
BEMEH - Hong Kong Profits Tax:
BEFETRER Underprovision in prior years (21) (17)
HEBIFTSHL The PRC income tax:
BEFERERE Overprovision in prior years - 537
ERERIE (ff:327) - Deferred tax (note 27):
REE Current year 247 375
B R E 5| 5 Attributable to a change in tax rate - 803
247 1,178
226 1,698

FEEMNEGHRSAMERETNREE - AR
AREREFEEBZBEARBLARS
B BEABRBTENGEHR -

BHIF—ZTEMFE=A=+—HIEPEFMR
GHRAAMEFREBEEEE ARNAFR
EFEEKREZPEXZHEEREE  HE
AHMPBEMEHR -

The Hong Kong Profits Tax represents an
underprovision in prior years. No tax is payable on
the profit for the year arising in Hong Kong since the
Group had no assessable profit for both years.

The PRC income tax for the year ended 31st March,
2004 represented an overprovision in prior years which
was calculated at the prevailing tax rate in the PRC.
No provision for the PRC income tax has been made
in the current year as the operations in the PRC
incurred tax losses for both years.
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11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled

to the profit before tax per the income statement as

follows:
Z2BIF 3 uik:3
2005 2004
TER BaL TAL BAl
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

Profit before tax 62,761 159,811
Tax at the income tax rate of

17.5% (10,983) (17.5) (27,967 (17.5)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible

for tax purpose (18,385) (29.3) (12,051) (7.5)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (7,327) (11.7) (10,343) (6.5)
(Under) overprovision in prior years (21) (0.1) 520 0.3
Tax effect of income not taxable for

tax purpose 23,537 37.6 36,154 22.7
Utilisation of tax losses previously not

recognised 7,166 11.4 6,295 3.9
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

operating in other jurisdictions 6,203 9.9 9,535 6.0
Others 36 0.1 (77) (0.1)
Deferred tax asset not recognised

in prior years - - (751) (0.4)
Increase in deferred tax balances resulting

from an increase in tax rate - - 803 0.5
Tax effect of share of results of associates - - (420) (0.3)
Income tax credit and effective tax rate

for the year 226 0.4 1,698 1.1
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12. BRE 12. DIVIDENDS
“EEIRE —TTQNF
2005 2004
THER THT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RHE BN -SREBE1.05L  Interim, paid — HK1.0 cent (2004:
(ZEZWMF : 0.57%81l) HKO0.5 cent) per ordinary share 11,988 5,953
RE 2 -BREER3.0EI Final, proposed — HK3.0 cents (2004:
(ZEZTWMF : 3.0/81L) HK3.0 cents) per ordinary share 36,110 35,924
B AFRERITE Additional prior year's dividend paid
BERBREREIN on exercise of share options subsequent
A2 ARTF R B to the issue of the annual report - 42
48,098 41,919
13. BRER 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
PR B 7R N B SE A A TO AR 1R DA N BUR AT The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
" share is based on the following data:
“EZEF e
2005 2004
BEFEFRER Profit for the purposes of basic and
REFZ RN diluted earnings per share:
AEEmMET) Profit for the year (HK$) 62,158,000 162,084,000
RETETRER Weighted average number of
i 7 2 AR ordinary shares for the purposes of
InREF & basic earnings per share 1,199,876,873 1,190,261,487
EEEEHEYE Effect of dilutive potential
Tk ordinary shares:
BERRIE Share options 3,461,506 8,016,719
BEFTEBREE Weighted average number of
i M2 &R ordinary shares for the purposes of
AT 5 & diluted earnings per share 1,203,338,379 1,198,278,206
TE5T & 5 M F BE 3008 B R % 5 b /& The computation of diluted earnings per share does
NREIZEBAR  HAZABEBERGERS not assume the exercise of warrants by subsidiaries
EmMSERMNEZEREN - since the exercise of them would result in an increase

in earnings per share for both years ended 31st March.
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BE_TTHhF=A=t—RLFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2005

14. Y% BERRHE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
KA KE
iR LS ES3 R BEREE IARIK RE g
Furniture,
fixtures Toolings
Leasehold Leasehold and Plant and and Motor
properties improvements equipment machinery moulds vehicles Total
TEL TEL TETL TAL TEL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
r5E THE GROUP
A COST
RZZZMEMA-A At 1st April, 2004 173,386 25,018 90,898 101,550 78,120 9,395 478,367
WE Additions - 1,470 2,992 9,551 9,855 441 24,309
HE Disposals (188) (56) (1,665) (2,582) (928) (645) (6,064)
HE-HBAR Disposal of a subsidiary - - (8,537) - (872) (555) (9,964)
RZZEFAF=F=+—H At31stMarch, 2005 173,198 26,432 83,688 108,519 86,175 8,636 486,648
REREH DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION
RZZTMEMA-A At 1st April, 2004 32,610 24,787 82,615 78,353 68,318 5,107 291,790
REREE Provided for the year 3,538 822 3,854 10,903 9,247 1,115 29,479
hE R Eliminated on disposals (49) (56) (1,446) (1,917) (928) (645) (5,041)
HME-HERRE Eliminated on disposal of
nk a subsidiary - - (7,387) - (872) (430) (8,689)
RZZFAF=F=+—H At31st March, 2005 36,099 25,553 77,636 87,339 75,765 5,147 307,539
REEE NET BOOK VALUES
WZESRE=FA=1—H At31stMarch, 2005 137,099 879 6,052 21,180 10,410 3,489 179,109
RZFTME=A=+—H At31st March, 2004 140,776 231 8,283 23,197 9,802 4,288 186,577

IAEEHREN R 2 REFERRE

The net book value of the leasehold properties of the
Group shown above comprises:

—EZhF —ETmE

2005 2004

TR TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

MIRERLTH - REFEA In Hong Kong, medium-term leases 97,332 100,022
IR E L - PEEL In the PRC, medium-term leases 39,767 40,754
137,099 140,776

R-ZZEEWE=A=+—H KA %
EREZENRE R 2 REFEST
RHABAOEE 2EED R /128,000
JLH2,887,000/7C - R EERE=H
=t+—HB REERHBAYOEBEZE
,‘% o
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At 31st March, 2004, the net book value of furniture,
fixtures and equipment and plant and machinery
included an amount of HK$128,000 and HK$2,887,000
respectively in respect of assets held under finance
leases. At 31st March, 2005, no asset was held under
finance leases.
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15.

THE GROUP

COST

At 1st April, 2004
Additions

Disposal of a subsidiary

At 31st March, 2005

AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1st April, 2004

Provided for the year

Impairment loss

B HwERMaE (&)
Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
HE_TZTRAF=HA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st March, 2005

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Eliminated on disposal of

a subsidiary

At 31st March, 2005

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st March, 2005

At 31st March, 2004

73

TR B 2 Bk A w
Land Development

use rights costs Total

FTET THET FTET

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

11,672 41,928 53,600

= 6,140 6,140

- (31,424) (31,424)

11,672 16,644 28,316

2,569 23,071 25,640

218 5,308 5,526

- 1,195 1,195

= (21,734) (21,734)

2,787 7,840 10,627

8,885 8,804 17,689

9,103 18,857 27,960
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15. B EE (&)

RE-B-—NAN=FA—BFLZ®
& ARERG-—RBAMATFHETT
REERZZ I MERE - £R— &
N AEETARFESFHAR LM
EAXNERE  REAtTF - FEAK
K2 AR Z A F AR - TRE M 3618

PREBEAENKE -

B EEZHEDRATFHERAAER

EEHH :

= bk AR (F)
Land use right (years)

FEKA (5)

Development costs (years)

N—BERE=F=1+—H ARAE
EUAEEZHAZEEREL RN TER
BR{n 7 B AR AR R IR 2 T 35 15 0 T E BUR
B -RAl EHERXAE BER
1,195,000 BT (ZZ Y4 : 7,249,000

BIL) ZRIE e
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For the year ended 31st March, 2005

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1st June, 1993, the
Group obtained from a PRC party the rights to use a
piece of land in Dongguan, the PRC, for a period of
50 years. Under the same agreement, the Group is
committed to pay an annual management fee relating
to the use of land over 50 years. The related
commitments for future minimum lease payments are
disclosed as lease commitments in note 36.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the following periods:

50

At 31st March, 2005, the directors conducted a review
of the Group’s development costs and identified that
certain development costs were impaired with
reference to the current market conditions.
Accordingly, an impairment loss of HK$1,195,000
(2004: HK$7,249,000) has been recognised in the
financial statements.
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RBARIKRE 16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
PN
THE COMPANY
—EEERF —EEMF
2005 2004
TR FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
JEEMEREN R Unlisted investments, less impairment
REBE loss recognised - 30,161

FETERMDZEEEE - DREARF
B—B-NWN=FfTz28BHEMMK
RASBREERARZE  AEEE
BB RREREEFEZREAENR
ERRBZBERNSE -

RZZEZTRF=A=+—H ' ARAl&E
EHME L RREFL R L ERE D
RERNEMSBRAMEBRE - HIE
i BEEBEERER -

5 0 B 28 B 4B A TS
P 4 £ R R 2 S A A o

TEMBRARFBEHIINHEIS

2

Bt N RS

EBHEEFE

TEBERRFBEHNKEIS -

17.

Share of net assets

The carrying value of the unlisted investments is based
on the book values of the underlying net assets of the
subsidiaries attributable to the Group at the date on
which the Company became the holding company of
the Group under a group reorganisation in 1993 less
identified impairment loss.

At 31st March, 2005, the directors conducted a review
of the investment in subsidiaries and identified that
certain investments were impaired with reference to
the current market conditions. Accordingly, impairment
loss has been recognised.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
38.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

ARE
THE GROUP
=i s
2005 2004
it it
HK$’000 HK$’000

Details of the principal associates are set out in note
38.
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18. BHFRE 18. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
rE
THE GROUP
A RE EERE BE
Other investment Investment securities Total
“EZRF _TING ZEZEF _TTME -ZEZIF _TINf
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
TER TEL TER TEL TER TET
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
RARES Equity securities:
A LH - WA Listed in Hong Kong,
at market value - - 115 115 115 115
FEm - AR Unlisted, at cost less
REEE impairment loss - - 37,869 36,537 37,869 36,537
- — 37,984 36,652 37,984 36,652
EHEH Debt securities:
HEBLD TE Unlisted in Hong Kong,
at fair value 8,986 - - - 8,986 -
8,986 - 37,984 36,652 46,970 36,652
BERENMAINZ Carrying amount analysed for
REE reporting purposes:
Vi) Current 8,986 = - = 8,986 =
e Non-current - - 37,984 36,652 37,984 36,652
8,986 - 37,984 36,652 46,970 36,652

LEBEAEBRRMEARE LY
32,000,000 TR EB B FEHR QA
(MEHB]) » 1519.69% 1 - BRERES
Hff - EXEZEXBALRBERERE
B -

Included above is the Group’s investment in Net Plus
Company Limited (“Net Plus”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong, amounting to approximately
HK$32,000,000 for both years. The investment
represents a 19.69% holding of the equity interest in
Net Plus. Net Plus is engaged in investment holding
and publishing of a medical magazine.
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EHRE (&)
NR-ZEZNE=A=+—H EZRFE
BREEBZEXEBRAMBRTEESRRE
BrEEEE AELEREZHNE -
1 SRR (B 518 2,425,000/ 7T i B = B 7E
BIIS3RE/ A ©

H ftb P& W iR 3K
H Al KRB K P B AN R B E AT F R
HEBHFRERKEXEH 2HIR 2K

18.

19.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)
At 31st March, 2004, the directors conducted a review
of the Group’s investments in securities with reference
to the business operated by the investees and due to
the change in the economic environment, an
impairment loss of HK$2,425,000 was identified and
recognised in the financial statements.

OTHER RECEIVABLE
Other receivables include an amount relating to sale
proceeds receivable in connection with the disposal

REK DDA T of the Group’s pager product operation in prior years.
The amount received and receivable by instalments
is as follows:

rE
THE GROUP
—E2EIF —ZTTmEF
2005 2004
THER FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
oS R U BR 3R Sale proceeds receivable 17,500 25,000
W AFEEE Wz FHIE Less: Amount received during the year (8,750) (7,500)
8,750 17,500
B BEERBDEERE L Less: Amount due within one year, included
R—FREIE 2508 under current assets (5,000) (12,500)
N—E&EIH A Amount due after one year 3,750 5,000
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20, Hth&EE 20. OTHER ASSET
rEE
THE GROUP
—EE2RF —ETNE
2005 2004
FHx FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BHES - KAE Club debenture, at cost 466 466
o REEE Less: Impairment loss (466) (466)
21. #FE8 21. INVENTORIES
rEE
THE GROUP
“EERE —2ETNEF
2005 2004
FHT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R # Raw materials 150,790 95,409
E&m Work in progress 10,604 11,993
2R Finished goods 27,762 52,451
189,156 159,853
LA B4R R 116,150,000 70 (Z B = Included above are raw materials of HK$16,150,000
/g & : 11,956,000 ot ) * £ & & (2004: HK$11,956,000), work in progress of
2,108,000/ 7T (ZZZ M4 : 1,620,000 HK$2,108,000 (2004: HK$1,620,000) and finished
Bor) k8K 2,939,000 (ZEZE WM goods of HK$2,939,000 (2004: HK$5,787,000) which
F : 5,787,000/ 7T) * B IEA] FIRFH are carried at net realisable value.
B8R -
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e & 5 R
SEETEFPONENNRAFHR0E
90H -

ATDHEBEZEINEREB 2Rk
Vil

TE60K 0 - 60 days
61290k 61 — 90 days
#BI0K Over 90 days
BT E SR

AT DENESERNEER 2R D
DI

TE60KX 0 - 60 days
61290k 61 — 90 days
HiEBI0K Over 90 days

22.

23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES
The Group allows an average credit period of 60-90
days to its trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
at the balance sheet date:

rEE

THE GROUP
“ETEF —ZTTmE
2005 2004
FHT FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
78,697 177,770
624 4,980
6,637 3,790
85,958 186,540

TRADE PAYABLES
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at
the balance sheet date:

PN

THE GROUP
“ETEF —ZETmE
2005 2004
FTET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
149,116 155,975
17,345 4,152
1,992 4,505
168,453 164,632
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24, EmREREB 24. PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISION
rEH
THE GROUP
FAT
HK$’'000
RN_ETMEMHA—H At 1st April, 2004 500
AEEEFEA Utilised during the year (500)
REFRE Provided for the year 500
RZEZRF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2005 500
EnREEEGENEEEREAERBE The product warranty provision represents
HE T EFERIEEREZEETLRIE management’s best estimate of the Group’s liability
2 B EREAE © under warranties granted on the sales of the electronic

handheld products based on past experience.
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25. BANK BORROWINGS

Trust receipt loans
Bank loans

Analysed as:

Secured
Unsecured

Repayable as follows:

Within one year or on demand

More than one year, but not exceeding
two years

More than two years, but not exceeding
five years

Less: Amount due within one year,
included under current
liabilities

Amount due after one year

81

rE
THE GROUP

—FFHF “TTmE
2005 2004
THER FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
10,887 43,719
25,755 45,092
36,642 88,811
16,632 23,670
20,010 65,141
36,642 88,811
26,654 63,056
5,052 5,052
4,936 20,703
36,642 88,811
(26,654) (63,056)
9,988 25,755
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26. BMBHENER 26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
BERAZH BEANRE2RE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
Z220F g Juik:3 “EELE g uik:3
2005 2004 2005 2004
TiEx THL THER THL
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
A5E THE GROUP
ENTBENSE Amounts payable under finance leases:
—FR Within one year - 29 - 29
B ARZHKER Less: Future finance charges - = - -
BOREZRERE Present value of lease obligations - 29 - 29
B SIARBEBELR Less: Amount due within one year,

—ER3H A included under current liabilities - (29)
—ERIH 2 Amount due after one year - =
BBEAEENRE  HORM  RER It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its furniture,
B BEREBRECAMBHOBRE fixtures and equipment and plant and machinery under
THHENFHAR—ERF RZTZTQ finance leases. The lease term ranges from 1 to 5
F=ZRA=+—HILFE  FHEREXK years. For the year ended 31st March, 2004, the
MER2.7% > FEREREHANTIA - AT average effective borrowing rate was 2.7%. Interest
EHAHVAEEEHRA N ERRE RN K rates are fixed on the contract dates. All leases are
REEZHRBEELREMTY - on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have

been entered into for contingent rental payment.

RNEBZUBHNEERERRTEHE The Group’s obligations under finance leases are
NE - secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.
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AT AREER FEEZEERIES
E/ABNESBR

R-ZT=ENA—A At 1st April, 2003
REFEMORD) BA Credit (charge) to income for the year
MEREMEELZHEZE  Effect of a change in tax rate

F=ZA=+—HK At31st March, 2004 and
EMA—H 1st April, 2004
REFEMORD) WA Credit (charge) to income for the year

RZZEERE=R=1+—-H At 31st March, 2005

RTREEERBRZEN  —HLET
MHEREEMBELHEEE /7T EGH
BHRE UTITDHDRELEHRBERBZD
1

ELEHIBEE Deferred tax assets
RERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities
8

B %% sk & Mt s (&)
Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
HE_TZTRAF=HA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st March, 2005

DEFERRED TAXATION

THE GROUP

The following are the major deferred tax assets/
liabilities recognised by the Group and the movements

thereon during the current and prior year:

MEREHE REBE it BeH
Accelerated

tax Tax

depreciation losses Others Total

THL THRL THL THL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(2,379) 10,310 642 8,573

168 288 (81) 375

(223) 966 60 803

(2,434) 11,564 621 9,751

58 679 (490) 247

(2,376) 12,243 131 9,998

For the purposes of balance sheet presentation,
certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

3

—BE2RF —ZETWEF
2005 2004
TER FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
10,085 10,015
(87) (264)

9,998 9,751
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27. EEBE ()
AEE (&)

REFE R - A& E ¥ B 394,634,000/ T
CAFERBEBEE (ZZSTWF
392,550,000/ yt) A] A {E#K 85 B 18 2 F)
- HARRRERIE & 2 /569,960,000/% 7T

—Z T4 : 66,080,000/ r) M A2
VA& 511 2R A B4 - #0F 324,674,000
BT (ZZZTIM4F : 326,470,000/870) HY
MEBETERAEEHRBEEE - K3

RIBEEEB AR AET -

ENVNS|
N

NEEH - NATRIHEAR10,698,00078 T
ZAFEABEEEBEREB(ZZZNF
17,491,000/ 7T) Al A {EH §5 B 18 2 I

M e AR AR AR ER -

HEERGIEREERBREE - TN

BEEEERDRRPET -
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

THE GROUP (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$394,634,000 (2004: HK$392,550,000)
available to offset against future profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of
HK$69,960,000 (2004: HK$66,080,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$324,674,000 (2004:
HK$326,470,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Most of these losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

THE COMPANY

At the balance sheet date, the Company has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$10,698,000 (2004:
HK$17,491,000) available to offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit steams. All these losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.
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g 2= 28. SHARE CAPITAL
B1n 8B TAT
Number of shares HK$’000
FREE0I0ETLZ Ordinary shares of
&R, HK$0.10 each
ETE Authorised:
RZZEZT=FMA—AH At 1st April, 20083,
R-_ZZEWME=A=+—HN& 31st March, 2004 and
RZZEZRF=RA=+—H 31st March, 2005 3,000,000,000 300,000
BETRARE : Issued and fully paid:
RZZEE=FWMA—H At 1st April, 2003 1,184,505,029 118,450
AT EERRER Shares issued upon exercise of
TR share options 14,299,000 1,430
o] % K% =t 85 Pk 1 Shares repurchased and cancelled (1,342,000) (134)
RZZEZEWF=A=+—HK At 31st March, 2004 and
—“ZEZNEFENMA—H 1st April, 2004 1,197,462,029 119,746
HITE B L RREN Shares issued upon exercise of
TR share options 6,193,000 620
R_ZEERF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2005 1,203,655,029 120,366
—EETREF 2005
RZEERF=ZA=1+—HILFERN - During the year ended 31st March, 2005, the Company
ELATTEE 9 5l /&5 180.25078 7T & T i allotted and issued 2,401,000 and 3,792,000 new
0.2028 TLITEE A RIREN R - AR ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at an exercise price
A 2 5l o B & ¥ 17 2,401,000 & of HK$0.250 per share and HK$0.202 per share,
3,792,000 & X E 1H0.107% 7T 1Y & B AX respectively, as a result of the exercise of the
AR o Company’s share options.
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28.

B (&)

—sEmE
K-TEMEZA=+—BLFRA -
ARFRGEBMT :

(i) BB FAEBARARHMT

BREE0.10E T Z

=& A 7 EBERR G

Month of No. of ordinary

repurchase shares of HK$0.1 each
7T
HK$

—TEWENA

April 2004 1,342,000

bt B 7 [ B R B 2 HRE 8 e

(i)  HARITERED R AEK0.250% T
K F 1% 0.2027% T 1T H 18 £ R HE
MRS - AAF DB DR &ET
7,659,0000% % 6,640,000% M B &
§%0.10/78 7T &9 3 38 AR FT AR ©

ARRzMBRARYERE @ HhEXE
B{ERARB Z EH&EF o
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

2004

During the year ended 31st March, 2004, the Company
had the following share transactions:

(i) repurchased its own shares through the Stock
Exchange as follows:

BREE
Price per share 2 X ARKRE
B& =y Aggregate
Highest Lowest consideration paid
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
(ff7t29)
(note 29)
0.26 0.26 348,920

The above shares were cancelled upon
repurchase for the year ended 31st March,
2004.

(ii) allotted and issued 7,659,000 and 6,640,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at an
exercise price of HK$0.250 per share and
HK$0.202 per share, respectively, as a result
of the exercise of the Company’s share options.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.
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29. f#1& 29. RESERVES
NN THE COMPANY
BREE ES |
R % E e BB (FR)RA L
Share Capital Accumulated
premium  redemption  Contributed (losses)
account reserve surplus profit Total
TAT THL TET TET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZEE=FNA—H At 1st April, 2003 409,843 285 58,086 (152,086) 316,128
D IEL: Y&k Shares repurchased and cancelled
(ff:%28) (note 28) (349) 134 = - (215)
BrEEEH Share repurchase expenses (5) - - - (5)
TR RREN Issue of shares upon exercise of
BIRN share options 1,826 - = - 1,826
RERH Profit for the year - - - 172,050 172,050
BRRE Dividends paid - - - (23,781) (23,781)
N-ZEME=F=F+—HK At31st March, 2004 and
ZEERENA—H 1st April, 2004 411,315 419 58,086 (3,817) 466,003
ROERERKER Issue of shares upon exercise of
2R share options 747 = = = 747
RERF Profit for the year = = = 55,771 55,771
ERRE Dividends paid - - - (47,954) (47,954)
RZEERE=RA=+—H At 31st March, 2005 412,062 419 58,086 4,000 474,567

ERBHRTIHBARRARAKEE A
ZEABRREZEARRBROR AN
=4 b7 Al & B B AR PR 52 TE MR T
TZARRBRMPEEZEZRE -

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired
by the Company and the nominal amount of the

Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation prior to the listing of
the Company’s shares in 1993.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2005

29. f#E (#])
BEERE-AN—FQ8% (&
) —RHARZELBRBETHAR -
R - ADRAETHERT - TARE
BEBENSRARMARE :

29.

(a) EHRHEBIHREBEEE FE
EHIRMREXERRE & X
(by HEEZAEREBEENEER

KB BETRARBR DG EBR AR
@ o]

REFEMOEL  AATNEETH
RaREMMDT

Contributed surplus
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Accumulated profit (loss)

RESERVES (Continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or
(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby

be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserve
available for distribution to shareholders were as
follows:

—ZEZhRF e s
2005 2004
FHERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
58,086 58,086
4,000 (3,817)
62,086 54,269




30.

Bt R R M RE ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont'd)
HE_TZTRAF=HA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st March, 2005

EraRRE S

2002t &

AR R E M B D R HE S PDAE R A R
RAR-ZBZE-_FMA-BRMABELR
At st & (1200251 811) - AR - %3
RBBAREBESRLNDEA - ZHE
BIERE ABAER - BREBAI0F -

LHE AR zETEHERLEELR
RETHEERZZ2EA  BREAEE
ZEMEE  mRBE  EFNER -
&N AL R R EEREE S B 22002
EIMBEE 2 BEERREETEM
ATETZEAANKRMNHEE - TS5H8
BEARFTEEZBERTRGO Z
10% ° &6 ERSEAREM12(8 A 5
MEEBLERKREMT TEITZRNOE
B RENRBEBEITRNDZ1% - EEESF
BRI RARARAZBRREAREAS LHE
BRI e MARRES ZRITBAER
SEERFRIABFESBLHMEALTET
BRABEE  VEBSARARZBIIE
WITESIE - BE - MRNER12EA
HARMARA ZEEZR R BILIEHNIT
EEYURETECHBEALIERLHELRR
BEMET 2RO A BAE FETRM
2.0.1% 2 B F ik {n 2 B 1B 85,000,000
B (BELELERRES KRR MK T
B)  BIBEEEARRARRZKRRE
RERE LHtE -

R-_ZTEZERF=F=+—H - R#H2002
FHEIR L R ARITECBERBRE AN
A a7 E B A11,045,0000% + BlE B A
NEIE TGN 20.92% © L PDAZE I
BRARREBEE_ZEERAF=A=+—
HIEFE AR BB EE2002 5 8|5 H £
o {8 5C R AE -

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

2002 Schemes

The share option schemes of each of the Company
and its subsidiary, Group Sense PDA Holdings Limited,
were adopted on 2nd April, 2002 for the purpose of
motivating, attracting and retaining talented
participants of the Group (the “2002 Schemes”). The
2002 Schemes will remain in force for a period of 10

years commencing on that date.

The Board of Directors of the respective companies
may, at their discretion, grant options to the eligible
participant including any employee, officer, director or
consultant of the Group. The maximum number of
shares in each of the companies which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted under its 2002
Schemes must not exceed 10% of its issued share
capital at the date of approval of the scheme. The
maximum number of shares issuable under the options
to each eligible participant in any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares in issue unless the same
is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of
respective companies and the Company. Share
options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates must be approved by
independent non-executive directors of the Company.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting of respective companies and the
Company.

At 31st March, 2005, the number of shares of the
Company in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the 2002 Scheme of
the Company was 11,045,000, representing 0.92% of
the shares of the Company in issue at that date. No
option was granted under the 2002 Scheme of Group
Sense PDA Holdings Limited.
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30. EERBAE S (&)
20025t & (&)

BEFTAREARTHBEM21EATER
N BNEERBEZIRE  ARWE
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T BARBENTERIEEARZ

BEFEERE -

BERBRBEZTEE N ASEZTER
E o EBETHERZARZERMHEE - &K
RAEARBEZTEEARTIFH
BeEOARRBRNEELABERTE
REBZFAE A RTE : (i) XA 2 R R
MEELERBRER THHR5S ERXSBE
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For the year ended 31st March, 2005

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
2002 Schemes (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 business days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a consideration by the offeree. The
consideration for a grant of options of the Company
and Group Sense PDA Holdings Limited is HK$1.0.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determined by the respective Board of Directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determined
by the respective Board of Directors but shall not be
lower than the nominal value of the shares of the
respective companies. The exercise price of the
Company must also be the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange’s closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer; (ii) the average of the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.
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20027t & (&)

ARRZESREERAZBIERRE
HARERERAERNZZEHEELT

BE-ZEERF=-A=1+—RHLEE

HEER  REAH
Scheme Date of
type grant
2002 12.8.2002
2002 24.3.2003
2002 19.4.2004
He

Total
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BE-ZEENF=A=1+—RHLEE

FHEER  REAH
Scheme Date of
type grant
2002 12.8.2002
2002 24.3.2003
By

Total

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
2002 Schemes (Continued)
The following table discloses details of the share
options of the Company held by directors and
employees and movements in such holdings during
the year:
For the year ended 31st March, 2005
R-Z2NE R-B2LF
mA-A ZA=+-H SRTER
ESEd ERRH FEREH ERfTE WATE TS (THE)
Exercise price
Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding per share
at 1st April, during during during at 31st March, (subject to
2004 the year the year the year 2005 Exercisable period  adjustment)
(it28) BT
(note 28) HK$
2,831,000 = - (2,401,000 430,000 17.6.2003 - 16.6.2008 0.250
4,328,000 = - (3,792,000) 536,000  20.1.2004 - 19.1.2009 0.202
- 10,906,000 (827,000) - 10,079,000 20.1.2005 - 19.1.2010 0.950
7,159,000 10,906,000 (827,000)  (6,193,000) 11,045,000
For the year ended 31st March, 2004
R-BE=F R-BEMF
MA-H =ZA=t-A BROKE
CESEd ERRH FREH ERfTE MATE RS (THE)
Exercise price
Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding per share
at 1st April, during during during at 31st March, (subject to
2003 the year the year the year 2004  Exercisable period  adjustment)
(Htit28) BT
(note 28) HK$
10,580,000 - (90,000)  (7,659,000) 2,831,000 17.6.2003 - 16.6.2008 0.250
11,465,000 - (497,000)  (6,640,000) 4,328,000  20.1.2004 - 19.1.2009 0.202
22,045,000 - (587,000) (14,299,000) 7,159,000
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30. ELEARRERS (&) 30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
20025t &l (&) 2002 Schemes (Continued)
RAREER/FBEZLEBERRERFY W Details of the share options of the Company held by
™ the directors of the Company included in the above

table are as follows:
BE-_EERFE=ZHA=1+—HLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2005
R-EEMF R-B2R%F
mA-H =ZR=t-AH BRTER
TEEN  BHAH ESEd FERRH EREH ERfTE WATE THEES (HE)
Exercise price
Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding per share
Scheme Date of at 1st April, during during during at 31st March, (subject to
type grant 2004 the year the year the year 2005 Exercisable period adjustment)
(Fi#t28) BT
(note 28) HK$
2002 12.8.2002 2,800,000* - - (2,400,000 400,000  17.6.2003 - 16.6.2008 0.250
2002 24.3.2003 3,800,000* - - (3,400,000 400,000  20.1.2004 - 19.1.2009 0.202
2002 19.4.2004 - 4,900,000* - - 4,900,000  20.1.2005 - 19.1.2010 0.950
By
Total 6,600,000 4,900,000 - (5,800,000) 5,700,000
BE_ZZNEF=FA=1+—HLEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2004
R-28=F R-BEMF
mA-A =ZR=t-AH BROKE
TEEN  BHAH ESHEd ERRH FREH ERfTE WATE THEES (HE)
Exercise price
Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding per share
Scheme Date of at 1st April, during during during at 31st March, (subject to
type grant 2003 the year the year the year 2004  Exercisable period  adjustment)
(Fit28) BT
(note 28) HK$
2002 12.8.2002 6,200,000 - - (3,400,000)  2,800,000* 17.6.2003 - 16.6.2008 0.250
2002 24.3.2003 6,300,000 - - (2,500,000)* 3,800,000 20.1.2004 - 19.1.2009 0.202
By
Total 12,500,000 - - (5,900,000) 6,600,000
* PREERETEREM ZEBNELRRK * Including share options granted to Mr. Lee Koon
#E o Hung’s spouse.
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30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
2002 Schemes (Continued)

Total consideration received during the year ended
31st March, 2005 from directors and employees for
taking up the options granted amounted to HK$142.
The number of share options granted to directors and
employees during the year was 10,906,000.

The fair value of the Company’s share at the date of
issue for the exercise of share options during the year
was ranged from HK$0.772 to HK$0.918.

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the Company’s or the Group’s balance
sheet until such time as the options are exercised,
and no charge is recognised in the income statement
in respect of the value of options granted in the year.
Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by
the Company in the share premium account. Options
which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise
date are deleted from the register of outstanding
options.
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CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE
PREFERRED SHARES ISSUED TO
MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS OF A
SUBSIDIARY

THE GROUP

(a)

(b)

On 28th May, 2001, 171,818 voting convertible
redeemable series A preferred shares (the
“Preferred Shares”) were issued to certain
minority shareholders (“MI”) of a subsidiary (the
“Subsidiary”). The Preferred Shares would
automatically be converted into ordinary shares
of the Subsidiary upon either the earlier of the
closing of a qualified public offering or at the
option of the MI. The Preferred Shares would
be redeemable at the option of the MI, out of
funds legally available therefore including
capital, at any time commencing five calendar
years after the Preferred Shares were issued
at a redemption price per share equal to the
original price of the Preferred Shares plus a
premium plus all declared but unpaid dividends.

On 19th May, 2003, the Company and the
Subsidiary entered into the agreements (the
“Agreements”) with the MI in which the MI
agreed to sell all the Preferred Shares of
HK$81,900,000 to the Company for a
consideration of HK$35,000,000 which was
settled by an initial cash consideration of
HK$11,000,000 and the remaining balance of
HK$24,000,000 was settled by way of
promissory notes payable semi-annually by 5
instalments. The promissory notes were
interest-bearing at a rate of 5.5% per annum.
Upon the Agreements being effective, the title
to, beneficial ownership of, and any risk
attaching to the Preferred Shares together with
all associated rights and benefits attaching or
accruing to them were passed from the MI to
the Company. As a result, a gain of
HK$46,900,000 together with the reversal of
the previously accrued redemption premium on
the Preferred Shares of HK$15,015,000 were
recognised by the Group during the year ended
31st March, 2004.
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31.

CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE
PREFERRED SHARES ISSUED TO
MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS OF A
SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

THE GROUP (Continued)

(c)

95

Pursuant to the Agreements, the Subsidiary
would also issue warrants (“Warrants”) to the
MI for a cash consideration of HK$10 for each
Warrant. The MI are entitled, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Warrants, at any
time or from time to time after 19th May, 2004
and before 18th November, 2005, to subscribe
for Warrant Shares (i.e. the ordinary shares
and any other shares or securities at any time
receivable or issuable upon exercise of the
Warrants) representing up to 10% of the issued
capital of the Subsidiary. The initial exercise
price of the Warrants is approximately
HK$44,789,000.

The Group had repaid the promissory notes in
full in the year ended 31st March, 2004.
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32.

For the year ended 31st March, 2005

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

As mentioned in note 8, the Group disposed of GST
of which the net liabilities at the date of disposal were
as follows:

“ETEF —ETmE
2005 2004
FTAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEBBZFEE : Net liabilities disposed of:
ME  BEKZE Property, plant and equipment 1,275 =
BREE Intangible assets 9,690 =
FE Inventories 3,476 =
FEUWE F 8RR Trade receivables 5,910 =
H & e BR 5K Other receivable 676 -
BB 55K % Trade payable (25,887) =
HAh AT BR K Other payable (4,149) =
RITEX Bank overdraft (663) -
(9,672) -
ERFEEER Translation reserve realised 679 =
HREE FE A B B 1 R BR 3K Waiver of amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 23,599 =
EERBEEER Legal and professional fees 152 -
HE—MBRRZER Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (4,758) —
BIEE Total consideration 10,000 =
T 5 Satisfied by:
ReEE Cash consideration 10,000 =
HEMSI 2R SR Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
ReEE Cash consideration 10,000 =
EERBEEER Legal and professional fees (152) -
RTBT2HE Bank overdraft disposed of 663 =
10,511 -

FEEZHBAREEERAFE &%
B #) & 4,676,00008 T K BB O A
2,305,000/ 7T I8 [ B 1E &R B R B 2 48
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The subsidiary disposed of during the year contributed
approximately HK$4,676,000 to the Group’s turnover
and losses of approximately HK$2,305,000 to the
Group’s operating results for the year.
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Bills discounted with recourse

Guarantees given to banks in respect
of general banking facilities granted
to an associate

Guarantees given to banks in respect

of general banking facilities granted
to subsidiaries

Guarantees given to banks in respect
of banking facilities utilised by:
an associate

subsidiaries
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rE AT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
“E2Z5f —ZTME “ZZhf “TTME
2005 2004 2005 2004
ThERL TEL TER TAT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
94,935 21,657 - =
10,000 8,000 - -
- - 204,714 204,000
rE b N
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
“E2EIfF s 3 3 s
2005 2004 2005 2004
TER TEL TER TET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
3,862 3,965 - =
- - 31,722 65,617
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For the year ended 31st March, 2005

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Company and its subsidiaries operating in Hong
Kong participate in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. Employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the
establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a
choice of staying with the ORSO Scheme or switching
to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees
joining the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are
required to join the MPF Scheme.

Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the
rules.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from the Group at a rate of 5% of the employees’
basic salaries.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
contributions payable by the Group are reduced by
the amount of forfeited contributions. The amount of
forfeited contributions utilised in this manner during
the year was HK$549,000 (2004: HK$264,000).

The employees in the PRC and Singapore are the
members of respective state-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the respective local
governments. The Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group in respect of the retirement
benefits schemes is to make the specified

contributions.



34.

35.

36.

Bt R R M RE ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
HE_TZTRAF=HA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st March, 2005

R KRR E 8 (&)
EREEASEYELRKBNEZ

B 54,681,000 TEHEERKRAR
e (—Z=ZT P4 : 5,089,000/8 7T) °

BARERE

34.

35.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
(Continued)

The total cost charged to the income statement of
HK$4,681,000 (2004: HK$5,089,000) represents
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group
in respect of the current accounting period.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

BN ERI& 4B R AP RE Capital expenditure contracted for but

BRAEEDE  BENRRE
ZEARRX

plant and equipment

ARAR-ETAFR-_FTEME=A
=+ AELEAMEAREARE -

not provided in the financial statements
in respect of acquisition of property,

TEHE
THE GROUP
=i s
2005 2004
TER TAT
HK$°000 HK$°000
1,209 2,557

The Company had no significant capital commitments
at 31st March, 2005 and 2004.

REBEOAE 36. OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS
AEBEHAEA The Group as lessee
xEH
THE GROUP
e 3 3 —TTNF
2005 2004
FTET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
AEERN I HMREFZ Minimum lease payments and
REMNRELPERNES management fee made under operating
REBRE leases in respect of land and buildings
during the year 8,630 9,901

99 —E2ZTHFERFEIRSE Annual Report 2005
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36.

For the year ended 31st March, 2005

OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments and related
management fee under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of properties which fall due as
follows:

—EE2RF —ZETMEF

2005 2004

TR FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

—£R Within one year 5,498 7,667
REZFEZEFRFRN In the second to fifth year inclusive 17,598 19,395
p Rk Over five years 31,195 35,616
54,291 62,678

REMONFEAEELNRREZET

Tﬁ'%& FEOWERZENESRER
cHAOEEEBIARA—E_t

¢°$H%EEEZ7¥K%E%£+¢°

ARAR-ZEREFR-FTEMEZA
S+-ARYEEMEAEEHNE
EEKA

REEHR  AEBEREEDEME
87,038,000 ;t (= T & 4 4+
99,989,000/% 7T) 2 AW A E B AR
SEFME—RBTHEZER -

R-ZBZAFR _ZTNF=A=+—
B ARRLELFAEREERNAFER
K EFE -
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Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for employees’ quarters and office
premises and the management fee relating to the use
of land in Dongguan, the PRC. Leases are negotiated
and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from 1 year to
20 years. The related commitments for management
fee is fixed for 50 years.

The Company had no significant lease commitments
as at 31st March, 2005 and 2004.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group pledged
leasehold properties with a carrying value of
HK$87,038,000 (2004: HK$99,989,000) to secure

general banking facilities granted to the Group.

The Company did not have any pledged assets as at
31st March, 2005 and 2004.
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FTEMBAARBERNTER

RZEERAF=A=+—8 " ' &2
ZRBATZFBOT ¢

WEARER 1 A L 3t B
Place of
incorporation/

Name of subsidiary registration

RERZBEETH hEARLNE

Dongguan Chang An Group PR ERT
Sense Electronics Factory The PRC
Sino-foreign

Joint Venture

ERUENETERAH hEARLFE
Global Asia High-tech MERA]
Electronics Co Ltd The PRC

Foreign Enterprise

Group Sense (China) Limited EBREAHE
British Virgin

Islands

BRABHNBRD EED

Group Sense Cyberspace Limited ~ Western Samoa

Group Sense (Dongguan) RERLHE
Limited British Virgin
Islands

Group Sense (Holding) Limited RERUHS
British Virgin

Islands

38.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at

31st March, 2005 are as follows:

ERTRAR
LERRA
/EMER

Issued and fully
paid up ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

20,000,000/ 7
HK$20,000,000

25,000,000/ 7T
HK$25,000,000

IE
US$1

100% T
US$100
10%TT
US$10

3,000% T
US$3,000

101

ENGES2 )
ERTEERRA
HERAL
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary capital

held by the Company

HE &

Directly Indirectly

ARl Aol

% %

- 100

- 100

100 -

100 =

- 100

100 -
—EThFEF

TRER

Principal activity

EFEREEREER
Manufacture and trading
of electronic products

ETEREEREE
Manufacture and trading
of electronic products

REZR

Investment holding

RERK
Investment holding

BENE
Property holding

REER

Investment holding

k5 Annual Report 2005
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For the year ended 31st March, 2005

FTEMBLARBEATESR

(%)

WEARER

Name of subsidiary

Group Sense (S.E.A.) Limited

Group Sense Investment
Limited

BEERAH
Group Sense Limited

Group Sense Manufactory
Company Limited

R PDARRAR 1A
Group Sense PDA Holdings
Limited

BEELERABRAR
Group Sense PDA Limited

1R R 3 40 2

Place of
incorporation/
registration

RERAEE
British Virgin
Islands

RERLES
British Virgin
Islands

BA
Hong Kong

RERLEE
British Virgin
Islands

L

Cayman Islands

BA
Hong Kong

38.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

ERTRAR
LERRA
/EMER

Issued and fully
paid up ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

1%
US$1

1%
US$1

1,000/ T *
HK$1,000*

1%
US$1

£ 181%90,000 X7t
ABBER17,182% T
Ordinary shares
US$90,000

Series A Preferred
Shares US$17,182

100 BT
HK$100

102

ARARE
ERTEERRA
EERAL
Proportion of
nominal value of

issued ordinary capital

held by the Company
B B #&
Directly Indirectly
BAl Aol
% %

100 —

100 -

- 100

- 100

75 =

- 75

TEEHR

Principal activity

REER
Investment holding

RERK
Investment holding

ETEmRTREE
Design and trading of
electronic products

BEYEM4EE
Manufacture of
electronic products

REER

Investment holding

BEFRREARBYE

EmRitREE
Design and trading of
smartphone and

PDA products
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FEfBLAEARBEEATDESR 38.

(&)
WEARAR T B 3 B
Place of
incorporation/
Name of subsidiary registration
Group Sense Singapore Pte Limited Mg
Republic of
Singapore
GSL Research Technology RERLHES
Limited British Virgin
Islands
GSPDA Intellectual Properties RERELHES
Limited British Virgin
Islands
REBHEERAA B
Muto Limited Hong Kong

Supreme Style Technology Limited ~ XERLZEE

British Virgin

Islands

BEREBRRA BA
Ultimate Winner Investments Hong Kong

Limited

* EEABRARINECEITEREELO
ETERERFERAEEER D
200,000/% ° i 3E f% 17 3 £% Mt A 2R AR
BEEEZHAAQRAMRREAS Z
BEIHEEMNRRERASIRAE L
REZER  TEETBERELMEE
A5k °

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

(Continued)
BERTRAR LNGTES2 )
LERRA BROTEERRA
/EmER AEBDL TEER
Issued and fully Proportion of
paid up ordinary nominal value of

share capital/  issued ordinary capital
registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activity

=8 B
Directly Indirectly
Btk ERalst

% %
500,000% %% 7T - 100 RESGERLRBGRS
$$500,000 Provision of software
consultancy and
research and
development services
1% - 100 HRAERRHMBER
US$1 Holding and licensing of
intellectual properties
1% - 75 RANBER
US$1 Holding of intellectual
properties
28T - 100 HAENE
HK$2 Property holding
100% T - 100 BEZK
US$100 Investment holding
10078 7T - 100 BEZK
HK$100 Investment holding

103

Group Sense Limited has also issued 200,000 non-
voting 5% deferred shares of HK$1.0 each. The
deferred shares practically carry no rights to
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or
vote at any general meeting of the company or to
participate in any distribution on winding up.

—E2ZTHFERFEIRSE Annual Report 2005
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38.

39.

FTEMBLARBEATESR

(%)

% Group Sense Manufactory Company
Limited AR B8 &40 - FT B B AT E A
A5 5 EL A MMl B ST b B 5 o

REZFGZER  LAWBARASHN
SEZEEREEREAREZNBR
ﬁ°§$§%%¢%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%@

i EBRhEHE -
R-BEERF=ZA=+—H AEE=E
B7BMERNRIZFREAT ¢
BENTEE ES 2 S

Form of

business

Name of associate structure
LTREZERBEARAA ¥
Beijing Huajian Huizhi Incorporated

Technology Co., Ltd.

HEHERSEHE
RZZEZTRFRA+TNA XAFRZ—
ME2ERaZHEBEA T—%%ﬁ%ﬁ
RAREBYE=-EFTEEALN
W@mnmmw%nm%ﬁTﬁgm
¥ REMEEMEIHE ZGEFTRER
#717,800,000/5 T - ERX L E R AT
ERE_AZF+NHKZA °
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38.

SRR BB

Place of
incorporation/

For the year ended 31st March, 2005

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

All of the subsidiaries operate in their place of
incorporation or registration except for Group Sense
Manufactory Company Limited, which operates in the
PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results or the assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would,
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

in the opinion of the

Details of the Company’s principal associate at 31st
March, 2005 are as follows:

ARAMEEE
EERRAEERAL
Proportion of nominal
value of issued ordinary

capital held indirectly

TEEHR

registration by the Company  Principal activity
hEARAANE 48%  RATEBMAFHE
The PRC Design and development
of software
39. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

104

On 19th May, 2005, Muto Limited, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party, to dispose of a leasehold property for a
consideration of HK$107,000,000. The estimated gain
on disposal of the leasehold property is approximately
HK$17,800,000. The completion of the disposal will
take place on or before 28th February, 2006.
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EBALIRS

RAFEAN  AEBR-BAEQAFEE
B2 B £%5%8,000,0008 T (ZTF
PU4F : B8N 7 A&%J13,000,000/%5 7T & Al
Bt N B 5 497,000,000 7T) © ANAAE
EBEREERZBELAGEE#EE -

NERXZUATGERETREREMS
BRAMESER  BIAKANERER
Dz FIEEE -

40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group purchased goods from a
related company amounting to approximately
HK$8,000,000 (2004: approximately HK$13,000,000
from a related company and approximately
HK$7,000,000 from a former associate). Mr. Tam Wai
Tong, Thomas, a director of the Company, has
beneficial interests in the related company.

The above transactions were carried out at market

prices or, where no market price was available, at
cost plus a percentage profit mark-up.

105 —ETHEPERE Annual Report 2005
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Financial Summary

£

EXE

Turnover

Bang A (&E)
ERER (i)

Profit (loss) before tax

DHRRERA Profit (loss) before
wH (EE) minority interests
DR Minority interests

AERERN (BR)

Profit (loss) for the year

hds Dividends
EEHEE
EEBERRDAE Total assets less
current liabilities
DER R R Minority interests
BAOTHEB SRR Convertible redeemable
Z A R R A preferred shares issued
BEK to minority shareholders
of a subsidiary
FERBARE Non-current liabilities
BREe Shareholders’ funds

—EZRFEFHE Annual Report 2005

Income tax credit (expenses)

RESULTS
BE=BA=1+—-HLEE
Year ended 31st March,
—ETE-F ZTT-F —TIT=F _TTEF —EERF
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
FAT FHT FAT FHT TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’000
(E75))
(Restated)
1,612,622 977,806 1,147,607 1,355,648 1,309,630
(281,069)  (106,302) 30,043 159,811 62,761
1,709 (461) (3,878) 1,698 226
(279,360)  (106,763) 26,165 161,509 62,987
851 8,625 15,846 515 (829)
(278,509) (98,138) 42,011 162,084 62,158
- - 17,768 41,919 48,098
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=BA=+-—8H
At 31st March,
—EE—F —TT-F —TT=F _TTNF Z—EERF
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
TAT TAT TET TAT THER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$’000
(E7))
(Restated)
561,240 527,195 566,670 614,879 615,926
(24,195) (15,553) (575) - (829)
- (88,725) (96,915) - -
(42,031) (25,991) (20,952) (26,019) (10,075)
495,014 396,926 448,228 588,860 605,022
106
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Financial Summary

Note: The comparative figures for the year ended 31st March,
2003 have been restated to reflect the effect in respect of
the adoption of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice
12 (Revised) “Income Taxes” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The comparative
figures for the year ended 31st March, 2002 and prior years
have not been restated to reflect the change in accounting
policy as the benefits which would be derived from fully
restating figures would not justify the costs to such
restatements.
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Particulars of Major Properties
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MEFHBAOT

&8 LB

Name/location

HEWE :

Leasehold properties:

1. ERBTERFRNER 2135
tHEKE 2701 EE 2710 &

Units 2701-2710, Wu Chung House

213 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai
Hong Kong
2. RE/LBEBRIAE B 95

EMIEE L2
£ 13-24 5 T35 &
5 P3 SR 12 B fif

Workshop Nos. 13 to 24 on 2nd Floor
and Car Parking Space No. P3
on Basement, Sino Industrial Plaza

9 Kai Cheung Road
Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong

3. RERLBEETHR
REmELHE
SYHEER
FNI¥E

Dongguan Chang An Group Sense

Electronics Factory
Fourth Industrial Zone, Wusha
Chang An, Dongguan

The People’s Republic of China

—EZRFEFHE Annual Report 2005

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at

31st March, 2005 are set out below:

5l
Type

[GE 3

Commercial

T

Industrial

I%

Industrial

108

F 58

Lease term

A

Medium-term lease

R FH

Medium-term lease

5

Medium-term lease
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